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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on The Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given

that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China E-Learning Group Limited (the “Directors”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading;
and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on

bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to report the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2011 to the shareholders.

REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of an internet platform for the facilitation of education program in
Chinese medicine and other advisory and training programs. This e-learning business remained our core activity. In order
to improve the business model of the Group, we have been exploring into different business projects where we could
extend our business strength in operating e-platform, by utilising our computer networking capability.

A letter of intent was entered into launching the “Medical Access Card Integrated Operation and Service Platform” in April 2011.
As announced, another three letters of intent were separately entered into on 10 June, 1 September and 12 October, in order
to connect our e-platform with an online sale of ticket system for cultural performance and sport games events.

COMMITMENTS

On 5 December 2011, the Group announced the signing of Cooperation Agreement between BJCHS and Lulutong in
relation to the development, technical maintenance and operation of the 1t St [& & 4 R 7 48 (Beijing Community Health
Services website), a website which will be based on the Medical Access Card Integrated Operation and Service Platform
developed by Beijing Hua Tuo Education Technology Company Limited (“Hua Tuo”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company.

On 14 February 2012, the Group announced a major transaction on the acquisitions of 100% shareholding interest in
Everjoy International Media Corporation and Everjoy Technology Development Corporation, subject to the approvals of
the shareholders in EGM and the GEM Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange who will grant the listing of and permission
to deal in the Conversion Shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the
convertible notes thereon.

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

Turnover for the year has increased by some 4% to HK$40,140,000 as compared to HK$38,575,000 in previous year. Of
which the IIN Medical Group has contributed revenue of approximately HK$39,968,000 and a net profit of approximately
HK$23,356,000 to our results. | expect that the IIN Medical Group will continue to contribute stable income as well as
cash flows to the Group.

Though the overall position of the Group is a net loss for the year at HK$32,266,000, it has improved by some 38% from a loss
of approximately HK$52,079,000 from previous year. A number of measures are taking effect and the policy to continue costs
and overheads reduction will be upheld into the future while we continue to scale down non-profitable operations.

APPRECIATIONS

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the members of the Board of Directors,
management team and our employees for their dedication and contribution to the Group. | would also like to express my
appreciation to our shareholders and business partners for their enduring support and confidence in the Group.

Chen Hong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$40,140,000 (2010:
HK$38,575,000) representing tuition fee revenue and sales of educational products. Gross profit for the year under
review was approximately HK$24,078,000 (2010: HK$19,205,000), representing a gross profit margin of 60% for the

year under review.

During the year, cost of sales was approximately HK$16,062,000 (2010: HK$19,370,000) representing the direct wages

and overheads incurred in the distance learning courses.

Other income for the year under review was approximately HK$3,188,000 (2010: HK$20,634,000) representing a gain on
redemption of convertible notes of approximately HK$1,950,000 (2010: HK$19,537,000), and a sundry income of
approximately HK$1,089,000 (2010: HK$1,061,000).

Selling expenses for the year under review was approximately HK$458,000 (2010: HK$165,000) representing the overheads
on promotional and advertising activities.

Administrative expenses for the year under review were approximately HK$39,561,000 (2010: HK$45,517,000), of which
staff related costs were approximately HK$7,997,000 (2010: 5,384,000) mainly attributed to the increase in lay-off payments
in the process of scaling down. Consultancy fees were approximately HK$7,497,000 (2010: HK$3,002,000) representing

the costs of conducting due diligences and obtaining financial advices with new business projects.
Impairment loss on goodwill for the year under review was nil (2010: HK$31,506,000).

Other expenses for the year under review were approximately HK$12,543,000 (2010: nil) representing a provision for
compensation on default repayment of convertible notes for approximately HK$10,860,000 (2010: nil) was made for
prudence, the loss on investment in a subsidiary which was deregistered in 2010 for approximately HK$1,107,000 (2010:
nil), and the write-off of long outstanding debts for approximately HK$576,000 (2010: nil).

Finance costs during the year were approximately HK$6,970,000 (2010: HK$14,730,000). They primarily consist of accretion
of interest on the liability portion of convertible notes of approximately HK$6,815,000 (2010: HK$14,911,000) and fair
value changes on the derivative portion of convertible notes of approximately HK$155,000 loss (2010: HK$181,000
gain).

As a result, the consolidated loss for the year under review was approximately HK$32,266,000 (2010: loss of
HK$52,079,000).
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Capital structure, liquidity and financial resources

The Group financed its business operations mainly with cash revenue generated internally from operating activities and
additional funds raised by issuance of shares. As at 31 December 2011, the Group has current assets of approximately
HK$116,219,000 (2010: HK$97,367,000), including bank balances and cash of approximately HK$19,459,000 (2010:
HK$33,717,000). Total non-current assets of the Group amounted to approximately HK$7,569,000 (2010: HK$14,033,000),
which comprised property, plant and equipment, and available-for-sale financial assets. Total assets of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$123,788,000 (2010: HK$111,400,000) as at 31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any outstanding bank borrowing. Total current liabilities of the Group
were HK$112,397,000 (2010: HK$113,847,000), which mainly comprised trade and other payables, convertible notes
and the related financial derivatives. Total non-current liabilities of the Group were approximately HK$26,105,000 (2010:
HK$49,435,000), which comprised the convertible notes. Total liabilities of the Group were approximately HK$138,502,000
(2010: HK$163,282,000). As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net liabilities of HK$14,714,000 (2010: HK$51,882,000
net liabilities). Gearing ratio of the Group, as expressed as the ratio of total liabilities to total assets, was approximately 1.1
as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 1.5).

Share Capital
As at 1 January 2011, the authorised share capital of the Company was HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000

shares of HK$0.50 each and the issued share capital of the Company was approximately HK$655,385,000 divided into
1,310,770,439 shares of HK$0.50 each.

During the year, shares were issued upon conversion of convertible notes as follows:

Principal amount of Conversion Number of
Date of conversion convertible notes price shares issued
HK$ HK$

14 January 2011 3,750,000 1.01 3,712,871
18 January 2011 3,154,106 1.01 3,122,877
21 April 2011 4,726,441 1.01 4,679,633
29 July 2011 30,000,000 0.50 60,000,000
22 August 2011 30,000,000 0.50 60,000,000
25 August 2011 19,500,000 0.50 39,000,000
91,130,547 170,515,381
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The Company has repurchased a total of 16,944,000 shares on the Stock Exchange in October 2011, details of which
are as follows:

Repurchase price

Number of Price per

shares share or
Date of repurchase repurchased highest price Lowest price
HK$ HKS
6/10/2011 152,000 0.240 0.240
7/10/2011 920,000 0.223 0.220
10/10/2011 9,232,000 0.210 0.195
11/10/2011 5,080,000 0.247 0.210
12/10/2011 1,560,000 0.249 0.240

All of these repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled on 18 October 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the authorised share capital of the Company was HK$5,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.50 each and the issued share capital of the Company was approximately HK$732,170,910 divided into
1,464,341,820shares of HK$0.50 each.

Convertible Notes
Convertible Notes 2008

The contractual obligation on these convertible notes extinguished on maturity on 28 February 2011, and was settled by
issuing two tranches of new convertible notes. Please refer to Convertible Notes 2011 A and Convertible Notes 2011 B.

Convertible Notes 2009

Pursuant to the acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical (BVI) Group, the Company issued convertible notes (“Convertible
Notes 2009”) as partial settlement of the acquisition consideration on 23 April 2009. The aggregate principal of the
Convertible Notes 2009 amounted to HK$32,770,000. The Convertible Notes 2009 are interest free, with a principal
amount of approximately HK$20,150,000 maturing in 48 months from the date of issue and the remaining principal
amount of approximately HK$12,620,000 maturing in 24 months from the date of issue and convertible into ordinary
shares at conversion price of HK$1.01 (2010: HK$1.57) per share, subject to adjustments.

On 15 July 2010, an aggregate principal of the Convertible Notes 2009 amounted to HK$6,780,000 were issued as the
final payment for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of IIN Medical (BVI) Group. The Convertible Notes 2009
are interest free, with a principle amount of HK$4,154,106 maturing in 48 months from the date of issue and the remaining
principal amount of HK$2,625,894 maturing in 24 months from the date of issue and convertible into ordinary shares at
conversion price of HK$1.01 per share, subject to adjustments.
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As at 1 January 2011, the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Notes was HK$25,620,217 (2010:
HK$32,770,000). The exercise in full of conversion rights vested with the Company’s outstanding Convertible Notes 2009
would result in the issue and allotment of 25,366,551 new shares in the Company.

In addition to the conversion of the Convertible Notes 2009 as shown above, Convertible Note 2009 in the principal
amount of HK$3,827,515 were redeemed during the period under review. As at 31 December 2011, the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Notes 2009 was approximately HK$10,162,000. The exercise in full of
conversion rights vested with the Company’s outstanding Convertible Notes 2009 would result in the issue and allotment
of 10,061,540 new shares of the Company.

Convertible Notes 2011

The Group had reached several agreements with the holders of the Convertible Notes 2008 which became mature on 28
February 2011, and a promissory note for approximately HK$50 million for a settlement. In order to be able to raise
sufficient fund for the settlement, the Group issued two tranches of convertible notes (“Convertible Notes 2011 A”) on 9
May 2011 and (“Convertible Notes 2011 B”) on 11 May 2011.

The aggregate principal of Convertible Notes 2011 A amounted to HK$89,999,934, bearing an interest of 1% per annum,
maturing in 36 months from the date of issue, and convertible into ordinary shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per
share, subject to adjustments.

The aggregate principal of Convertible Notes 2011 B amounted to HK$36,200,000, bearing an interest of 1% per annum,
initially maturing in 6 months from the date of issue, and convertible into ordinary shares at conversion price of HK$0.50
per share, subject to adjustments. On 11 November 2011, the maturity date was successfully postponed for another 6
months to 11 May 2012.

As at 31 December 2011, the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Notes 2011 A and Convertible
Notes 2011 B were HK$66,199,934. The exercise in full of the vested conversion rights would result in the issue and
allotment of 132,399,868 new shares of the Company.

On 21 July 2011, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with a group of independent subscribers for the
issuance of some convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of HK$42,000,000, bearing an interest rate of 3%
per annum, maturing in 12 months from the date of issue, and convertible into ordinary shares at conversion price of
HK$0.50 per share, subject to adjustments. Subsequently, the Group issued two tranches of convertible notes (“Convertible
Notes 2011 C”) on 25 August 2011 for the principal amount of HK$19,500,000 and (“Convertible Notes 2011 D”) on 14
September 2011 for the principal amount of HK$22,500,000.

As at 31 December 2011, the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Notes 2011 C and Convertible

Notes 2011 D were HK$22,500,000. The exercise in full of the vested conversion rights would result in the issue and
allotment of 45,000,000 new shares of the Company.
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Foreign exchange exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Although
the exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi has been moderately changing, it remains relatively stable.
As the expenditure in PRC was covered by the sales in PRC, the management considers that the Group has no significant
foreign exchange exposures. Foreign exchange risk arising from the normal course of operations is considered as minimal.
As at 31 December 2011, the Group has no foreign currency borrowings and has not used any financial instrument for
hedging the foreign exchange risk.

Significant investments
During the year ended 31 December 2011, no significant investments were made by the Group. (2010: nil)
Contingent liabilities and charges on the Group’s assets

There were no significant contingent liabilities or charges on the Group’s assets as at 31 December 2011. (2010: nil)
OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

The Joint Construction of Network Education College of Beijing University of Chinese Medicine Agreement (F£ 2 4t 7 &
Be i K E2RIR H A S0 i =) (“Joint Construction Agreement”) entered into between Beijing University of Chinese Medicine
(dt R AR B8 %K 2 and Hunan 1IN Medical Network Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“Hunan IIN Medical”), a subsidiary
of IIN Medical (BVI), on 29 July 2009 was successfully renewed on 1 July 2010. In accordance with the Joint Construction
Agreement, Hunan IIN Medical’s entitlement to share 60% of the profits of Distance Education College of Beijing University
of Chinese Medicine (1t 7 A 88 K 2% 72 # 5 £ %) (“Distance Education College”) is reduced to 51% profit-sharing
percentage during the year 2010 while all other terms and conditions thereunder are no less favourable than those under
the Joint Construction Agreement.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a total of 43 employees (2010: 64 employees) (including executive directors).
For the year under review, the total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$16,072,000 (2010: HK$9,542,000),
representing an increase of approximately 48.5% over the previous year. The increase in staff costs was mainly attributed
to the increase in lay-off payments in the process of scaling down.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees were kept at a market level and employees were rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus system, which is reviewed
annually. Staff benefits include contribution to the mandatory provident fund and share options. No share options were
granted to employees of the Group in the current year, whereby comparative details are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.
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PROSPECTS

During the year 2011, the Group has expanded its horizon into new business sectors, bringing new business elements
into the existing technological base. The proposal for an extension to medical health services has been initiated and
achieved progress. The Group will continue its efforts in 2012 and expect material outcome.

In the meanwhile, the Group’s business strategy extending into the booming online ticketing sales sector has achieved
significant progress and in its final stage. Subject to completion, the Group anticipates an increase in revenue and a

sustainable growth in the new sector.

The new business challenges ahead rely on our technical team in developing high level computer software, not only that
is capable of integrating new service platform in the internet, but also with an increasing demand to heighten security
measures for comprehensive system integrity as well as protection of privacy for users of the systems.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue to look for opportunities for our existing business, particularly in developing both

vertically and horizontally within the Group’s medical education platform, expanding further into our service network,
increase the shareholders’ value and reduce business risk.
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Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Hong (“Mr. Chen”), aged 43, was appointed as an Executive Director and Chairman of the Company on 1
April 2008; and the authorised representative and compliance officer of the Company on 22 September 2008, Mr. Chen
holds a Master of Business Administration from Peking University, China. Mr. Chen has previously worked in several
technology companies and investment companies in China as senior management, and had extensive experience in

corporate management and investment. Mr. Chen is mainly responsible for the strategy formulation of the Company.
Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Chen did not hold any directorships in any listed public company in the last four years.

Ms. Wei Jianya (“Ms. Wei”), aged 43, was appointed as an Executive Director on 22 September 2008. Ms. Wei holds
a Bachelor’s degree in commerce and financial accounting from Zhejiang Gongshang University (formerly known as
Hangzhou University of Commerce). Ms. Wei is a Certified Public Accountant registered in the PRC and Chinese Certified
Public Tax Consultant. She previously worked in PRC accounting firms and PRC listed companies and has extensive

experience in financial management and investment advisory.

Save as disclosed herein, Ms. Wei did not hold any directorship in any listed public company in the last four years.
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Wai Tak (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive director and the
chairman of the audit committee on 11 June 2010. Mr. Cheung has more than twenty years of working experience in the
investment banking and accounting field. Mr. Cheung is a Certified Public Accountant in California, United States of
America, and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated with an MBA
degree from the University of California at Berkeley, the United States of America in 1981. Mr. Cheung was an executive
director of China Grand Forestry Green Resources Group Limited (910) during the period from October 2007 to September
2009, and was an independent non-executive director of Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited (1188) during the period from April
2007 to November 2007.

Mr. Cheung is an independent non-executive director of Superb Summit International Timber Company Limited (1228).

As at the date of this announcement, Mr. Cheung did not have, and was not deemed to have any interest in the shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Dr. Huang Chung Hsing (“Dr. Huang”), aged 58, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director and a
member of audit committee of the Company on 14 August 2008. Dr. Huang holds a Ph.D. degree in Management
Science and Information Systems from the University of Texas at Austin, U.S.A. and a Bachelor’s degree of Science in
Electrical Engineering from National Taiwan University. Dr. Huang is the Associate Dean of College of Management,
National Taiwan University. He is also the chairman of the Committee of Service Management of Chinese Management
Association in Taiwan and the associate researcher of Health Management Center of National Taiwan University Hospital
in Taiwan. He has previously held senior positions in various universities and banks such as Beijing University in China and
Bank of SinoPac. Dr. Huang has extensive experience in service operation management, business decision making and

management of innovation.

Dr. Huang does not hold any other position in the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor did he hold any directorship in
any public listed company in the last three years. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Dr. Huang did not have, and was not
deemed to have any interest in any Shares or underlying shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Wu Tao (“Mr. Wu”), aged 39, was appointed as an independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company on 24 June 2010. Mr. Wu is a practicing lawyer in China. Mr. Wu is a law graduate from
Tsinghua University in 2006 with a master degree in law. Mr. Wu is currently a partner of Beijing Jian Hao Law Office.
Previously, Mr. Wu worked with Bureau of Justice of Beijing, Steering Group’s Office of Ruling the City according to Law
of Beijing {t R4 K AT B & /NAB A =) and Beijing Zhong Lun Law Firm. Mr. Wu was also the secretary-general of
the profession committee for surety matters under Beijing Bar Association.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wu does not hold any other position in the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor did he
hold any directorship in any public listed company in the last three years. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Wu did not
have, and was not deemed to have any interest in any Shares or underlying shares of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China E-Learning Group Limited (the “Company”) presents herewith
the annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 42 to 132.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any final dividend in respect of the reporting year (2010: HK$nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results of the Group for each of the five years ended 31 December

2011 prepared on the basis set out in the note below:

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000

Turnover 40,140 38,575 23,253 26,692 2,756
Loss before tax 32,266 52,079 475,636 364,403 2,373
Net loss after tax 32,266 52,079 475,378 365,862 2,378
Total assets 123,788 111,400 94,556 457,127 22,626
Total liabilities 138,502 163,282 330,862 394,324 1,077

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements of property, plant and equipment are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options during the year are set out in notes 27 and 35 to the financial
statements respectively.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES
Details of movements in the Company’s convertible notes during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity on page 46 and note 28 to the financial statement respectively.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, the Company did not have any reserve available for cash distribution (2010: HK$nil). In accordance
with the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company’s share premium account
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as

follows:
Sales
— the largest customer n/a
— five largest customer n/a
Purchases
— the largest supplier 52%
— five largest suppliers 83%

Students are our major customers. It is therefore not applicable to provide the largest and the five largest customers’

percentages on our revenue income.

None of the Directors, their associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the

Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers noted above.
DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year and at the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Hong
Ms. Wei Jianya

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Tak

Dr. Huang Chung Hsing

Mr. Wu Tao

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers that all Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent

to the Group in accordance with the terms of the guidelines as set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Cheung Wai Tak and Dr. Huang Chung Hsing
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chen Hong and Ms. Wei Jianya have entered into service contracts with the Company for a term of three years. These
service contracts may be terminated by either party giving not less than three months’ notice to the other party.

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the Company for a term of three

years.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of signilficance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid employees in the Group are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements respectively.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including its Directors, based on their performance, experience and prevailing
market rate. Other employee benefits include insurance and medical cover as well as share option scheme. Details of
share option scheme are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

The determination of remuneration of the Directors of the Company had taken into consideration of their expertise and job

specifications.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred therein; or (c) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Long position in shares or underlying shares of the Company

Name of Directors

and officer

Chen Hong (Director)

Wang Hui (Chief Executive)

Wei Jianya (Director)

Capacity

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Number of shares or

underlying shares held

Ordinary
shares

79,610,480

Share
options

6,377,306

6,377,306

2,349,634

Total

85,887,786

6,377,306

2,349,634

Percentage
of issued
share capital
5.87%

0.44%

0.16%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the other Directors or chief executive of the Company had

any interest or short position in shares, debentures or underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations

which was required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of

the SFO; or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred therein; or (c) pursuant to Rule

5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

INTERESTS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO AND SUBSTANTIAL

SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, so far as known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other

than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO

as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares or underlying shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder

Yang Dong Jun

Atlantis CapitalHoldings limited

Liu Yang (note)

Capacity

Beneficial owner

Investment manager

Interest of a controlled

corporation

Number of shares

or underlying

shares held

207,554,896

88,002,000

88,002,000

Percentage
of issued
share capital
14.17%

6.01%

6.01%

Note: According to the disclosure of interests notice filed, Ms. Liu Yang is deemed to be in control of Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited,
Ms. Liu Yang is deemed to be interested in the 88,002,000 shares of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Directors were not aware of any other persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded

in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year under review, neither the Directors nor the substantial shareholders of the Company and their respective
associates had any interest in business that competes, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Parker Randall CF (H.K.)

CPA Limited as auditors of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Chen Hong
Executive Director

Hong Kong
26 March 2012
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance and has applied the principles set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules by
making its best effort (i) to respect the rights of the shareholders and fully recognise the legitimate interests of the
shareholders; (i) to disclose information to shareholders in a timely manner and to increase the transparency of the
Company; (iii) to enhance the risk management and internal control policies of the Company; and (iv) to maintain responsible
decision making so as to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.

Save as the deviations as disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with all the code provisions on corporate
governance practices as set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required standard as set out in the
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

The Board of Directors, which currently comprises two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Hong and Ms. Wei Jianya
and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Tak, Dr. Huang Chung Hsing, and Mr. Wu Tao,
is responsible for the overall management of the Group. It focuses on directing the corporate strategies and supervising
the business and significant affairs of the Group while the duties of the daily operation management are delegated to the
management of the Company.

Mr. Chen Hong and Ms. Wang Hui are the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company respectively and their
roles are clearly segregated.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has complied with all the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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The Board held 26 meetings during the year ended 31 December 2011 and the attendance of each Director at the board
meetings are set out as follows:

Executive Directors Attendance
Mr. Chen Hong 26/26
Ms. Wei Jianya 26/26
Independent Non-Executive Directors Attendance
Mr. Cheung Wai Tak 20/26
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing 16/26
Mr. Wu Tao 24/26

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audit committee was established on 26 November 2001 for the purpose of reviewing and supervising the
Company’s financial reporting and internal control procedures. The committee comprises three independent non-executive

directors, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Tak (the chairman of the committee), Dr. Huang Chung Hsing and Mr. Wu Tao.

In 2011, the audit committee held 4 meetings and details of the attendance of each member of the committee are set out

as follows:

Committee Members Attendance
Mr. Cheung Wai Tak 4/4
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing 4/4
Mr. Wu Tao 4/4

During the year, the audit committee, together with the external auditors, have reviewed the accounting policies and
methods adopted by the Group and discussed with the management of the Company, inter alia, the matters relating to
internal control and financial statements of the Company. Relevant recommendations have been made to the management.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 23 March 2005 with major functions of (i) making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policies and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior management of the
Group; and (i) determining the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management of the Group; and (iii)

reviewing and approving the performance-based remuneration.
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The remuneration committee of the Company is chaired by Mr. Chen Hong. Other members include Mr. Cheung Wai Tak

and Mr. Wu Tao. The majority of the members of the remuneration committee are independent non-executive directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, a meeting of the remuneration committee was held. All members of the
remuneration committee, at the time being, attended the meeting. The Company’s policy for the remuneration of Directors
was discussed in the meeting and no changes on the policy were recommended by the remuneration committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the year, the Company has not yet set up a nomination committee, and Directors are nominated by existing
member(s) of the Board. Board members, except the one who nominates the candidate, shall assess the candidate’s
suitability of becoming a board member with reference to the nominated candidate’s qualification, working experience,
past performance and requirements of the Company and relevant provisions in the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is
well aware that there is a new Code requirement that a nomination committee must be set up before 1 April 2012. The

Company therefore established the nomination committee on 23 March 2012.
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An audit fee of approximately HK$ 185,000 was charged to the Group’s income statement for the year ended 31 December
2011.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review, which covered the major control procedures in areas of financial and operations
of the Company, on the internal control system of the Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control procedures.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The responsibilities of the Directors for preparing the financial statements and the auditor’s reporting responsibilities on

the financial statements are set out in the auditor’s report contained in this annual report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of
China E-Learning Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China E-Learning Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 132, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flow for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements which indicate
that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$32,266,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 and, as of that date, the
Group had net liabilities of HK$14,714,000. If the Group cannot materialise those expectations on improving the asset
position and net operating cash flow in the forthcoming year as disclosed per Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
there would be an uncertainty on having sufficient net cash inflow to support the Group’s ability to continue its operation
as a going concern.

Parker Randall CF (H.K.) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Seto Man Fai
Practising Certificate No.: P05229

Hong Kong
26 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

FealaR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F+_A=+—HIEFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Revenue Y 25 8 40,140 38,575
Cost of sales 58 P AR (16,062) (19,370)
Gross profit ER 24,078 19,205
Other income H A W a5 9 3,188 20,634
Selling expenses HEMZ (458) (165)
Administrative expenses TBF X (39,561) (45,517)
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE - (31,506)
Other expenses Hmms (12,543) -
Finance costs, net & R AR FER 10 (6,970) (14,730)
Loss before tax FMREBLATE R 11 (32,266) (52,079)
Income tax FriSat 13 - [
Loss for the year TEEER (32,266) (52,079)
Loss for the year attributable to: ATATEEARFEEESE
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIESF SN (39,007) (51,898)
Non-controlling interests FEE R b e 6,741 (181)
(32,266) (52,079)
Loss per share FREE 15
- Basic — &R (2.83 centsfll)  (5.18 centsfll)
- Diluted —HE N/A i N/A 7~ i FA
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FeZEBbaR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F +_A=+—HILEFE

2011 2010
—E2——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Loss for the year N E EHE (32,266) (52,079
Other comprehensive income HEi2mEmkas
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AtHEeMmEEQTFEE
financial assets (4,742) 2,225
Exchange difference arising on translation of BEBINEREEZERERE
foreign operations 3,052 2,060
Other comprehensive income, Hih2mE W= FOBRTEBH)
net of income tax (33,956) 4,285
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEELHEBEAE (33,956) (47,794)
Attributable to: AT AN LM -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE=F =N (40,697) (47,613)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R = 6,741 (181)
(33,956) (47,794)

—F——F 54 - ANNUAL REPORT 2011 43



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBKAR

As at 31 December 2011 R=—ZE——F+_-_A=+—H

2011
—E——fF

HK$’000
FER

2010

HK$’000
T

Assets and liabilities EEREE

Non-current assets RBEE
Goodwill [k ] 16 - =
Other intangible assets Hih@mEEE 17 - -
Property, plant and equipment Y - WENMEE 18 3,769 4,783
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESMEE 19 3,800 9,250
7,569 14,033

Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 21 = 103
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b fE PR R 22 96,760 62,148
Financial derivatives SROTETER 31 - 1,399
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReHEEAE 23 19,459 33,717
116,219 97,367
Total assets EEHE 123,788 111,400
Current liabilities REBERE

Trade and other payables B 5 REMENERR 24 45,330 30,792
Income tax payable FEBPTISHL - 62
Amounts due to directors JENEE A 25 = 116
Financial derivatives SRMITETEA 30 250 1,955
Convertible notes Al =5 30 66,817 80,922
112,397 113,847
Net current asset/(liabilities) RBEERE (BEFH 3,822 (16,480)
Total assets less current liabilities @ZEEZERABDERE 11,391 (2,447)

Non-current liabilities FERBEME
Other loan HEaEH® 29 - 49,435
Convertible notes Al =5 30 26,105 =
26,105 49,435
Total liabilities BEAEH 138,502 163,282
Net liabilities EEFE (14,714) (51,882)

Capital and reserves AR e
Share capital fi& 7 27 732,171 655,385
Reserves & (750,653) (711,035)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 IR e 3,768 3,768
Total equity HRER (14,714) (51,882)

The consolidated financial statement on pages 42 to 132 were
approval and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

FAL2EEFIRANGEVBEREN_—FT——F=5
“HAHEEFSHAENRRENR YH NIES

26 March 2012 and are signed on its behalf by REEE
CHEN HONG WEI JIANYA
BRZ EfRx
Director Director
EE EFE
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Statement of Financial Position

MG R

As at 31 December 2011 R=ZFE——F+_-_A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE T FHE T
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ BN E 18 53 6
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIZKE 20 1 1
Available-for-sale financial assets At EemEE 19 3,800 9,250
3,854 9,257
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b fE W BR 3X 22 27,036 1,196
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE W Bf /B8 & R 5RIR 20 136,388 165,942
Financial derivative ERITETE 30 - 1,399
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEEEE 23 1,673 15,368
165,097 183,905
Total assets EEH#E 168,951 193,162
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables 85 kEMENIRR 24 11,166 1,068
Amounts due to directors JENEEFHKIA 25 - 116
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAS BT /B R Bk I8 20 70 80,165
Financial derivative ERITETE 30 250 1,955
Convertible notes G E S 30 66,817 80,922
78,303 164,226
Net current asset RBEEFE 86,794 19,679
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRBERS 90,648 28,936
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Convertible notes Al AR R 30 26,105 -
26,105 -
Total liabilities EERE 104,408 164,226
Net assets EEFHE 64,543 28,936
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital % 2% 27 732,171 655,385
Reserves {1 28 (667,628) (626,449)
Total equity RS 64,543 28,936
CHEN HONG WEI JIANYA
R %= ERE
Director Director
E2 -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GeEEExR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F+_A=+—HIEFE

Available-
for-sale
Convertible ~~ financial
Share-based  Exchange notes assets Non-
Share Share  payment  fluctuation Equty  valuation Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity

TARRE
Bx  RfEE NRENBE EXRBEE  BREE EEGEG 2itE A FERER  BEAS
HKP000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS00 HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000
BT ¥ ThR T T T

At 1 January 2010 H-2-25-3-A 236,282 29,144 13483 4,054 137,964 - (eat00t)  (40074) 3768 (236,306)
(Loss) for the year () - - - - - - (51,898) (51,898) (181) (52,079)
Other comprehensive income rEERMRENE

for the year - - - 2,060 - 2225 - 4285 - 428
Total comprehensive income (loss) REE2E

for the year - - - 2,060 - 2205 (51,898) (47,613) (181) (d7,794)
Non-controling interests 2 "

contrioutions - - - - - - - - 181 181
Issue of shares under open offer 111,381 - - - - - - 111,381 - 111,381
Issue of bonus sheres 222,662 (222,662) - - - - - - - -
Share Issue expenses - 4.480) - - - - - (4.480) - (4,480)
Issue of convertiole notes - - - - 4561 - - 4 561 - 4,561
Issue of shares by conversion of Jpaliesiy E Rk

convertible notes 85,110 128,362 - - (11.917) - - 141545 - 141,545
Redemption of convertile notes BETARSE - - - - o) - - (%) - )
At 31 December 2010 and

1 January 2011 655,385 180,354 43483 6,114 49,688 222 (942,899) (65,650) 3,768 (51,882)
(Loss) for the year 155 (FB) - - - - - - (39,007) (39,007) 6,741 (32,266)
Other comprehensive income REREMZENE

for the year - - (28,989) 3,052 - (4,742) 30,740 61 - 61

Total comprehensive income (loss) TEERR

for the year - - (28,989) 3,052 - (4742) (8,267) (38,946) 6,741 (32,205)
Non-controling interests H# £

contribution - - - - - - - - (6,741) (6,741)
Being the cancelation of ordinary HEEBR0AET E Bk

shares at par value HK$0.50 (8472) 4,835 - - - - - (3,637) - (3,637)
Issue of convertile notes TTERER - - - - 17,628 - - 17,628 - 17,628
Issue of shares by conversion of i IR

convertble notes 85,258 5813 - - (12,956) - - 18,175 - 18,175
Redemption of convertible notes ; - - - - (950) - - (950) - (950)
Reclassification of settled

convertible note equity component - 30,267 - - (30,267) - - - - -
Being settlement of convertible

notes - - - - 04,015 - - 04,015 - 64,915
Reclassffication of convertible notes - - - - (80,012) - - (80,012) - (80,012)
At 31 December 2011 NE--F+ZAz1-A 732,17 171,329 14,494 9,166 8,041 (2517 (951,166) (18,482) 3768 (14,714)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

FERENER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F +_A=+—HILEFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Cash flow from operating activities EEEKELCZHERE
Loss before tax BB R B 1R (32,266) (52,079)
Adjustments for: LA %18 2 3%
Finance cost, net BB RN FRE 6,970 14,730
Depreciation weE 1,741 2,088
Interest income FEWA (102) (36)
Amortization of other intangible assets ~— BE§5 E i & E = 265
Amortization of prepaid land lease TR LA E KA
payments - 59
Loss on disposal of available-for-sales  HERHEE S RE EZEIE
financial assets 106 -
Impairment losses on goodwill mEE R EERE - 31,506
Impairment losses on inventories GFEREEE 121 -
Impairment losses on trade and other & 5 & H (i fE W BR 3K
receivables Z BB B 18 6,971 18,642
(Gain) on disposal of property, HEME - HEKEE
plant and equipment 2 (Wzs) = (1,043)
Gain on redemption of convertible notes & [E] 7] #2 i% Z 45 U4 75 (1,950) (19,537)
Operating cash flows before EEESHBAIRKREER
movements in working capital ZHERE (18,409) (5,405)
(Increase) decrease in inventories =FE Ggm md (16) 29
(Increase) in trade and other receivables & 5 [ H fib & UL BE 7 (38 70) (40,341) (26,061)
(Increase) decrease in amount due from & U FE4% A% 4 25 7018
non-controlling interests (3% h0) kA (6,741) 181
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K E b AT BR B8 0 14,986 12,527
Cash (used in) operations rEER (TR RS (50,521) (18,729)
Overseas taxes paid BB IEIE (62) (190)
Net cash (used in) operating activities & %% (Fr ) & EH (50,583) (18,919
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

FERENER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F+_A=+—HIEFE

2011
—E——F

HK$’000
FER

Cash flow from investing activities REFHELEZRSARE

2010

—E-FF

HK$’'000
TAET

Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BELKE

equipment (534) (600)
Proceed from sales of property, HEME  BE&EHE

plant and equipment <2 P18 50E 8 4,627
Proceed from available-for-sale At ESREE ZMSHKIE

financial assets 602 (7,025)
Interest received B U H B 102 36
(Increase) in deposits e (g - (39,422)
Net cash (used in) from investing REEE (FTA)

activities FBReRE 178 (42,384)
Financing activities & EE
Proceeds from issue of placing shares % TT@EEHxTﬁﬁﬁ@?ﬁ 27 - 111,331
Cancellation of ordinary shares FTiE (3,637) -
Issue of convertible notes ?é‘ﬁﬂ?@ﬁﬁ%‘%ﬁfx 118,201 -
Settlement of convertible notes ETBmiREE (76,200) -
Shares issue expenses f& 1R 8775 2 28 - (4,480)
Redemption of convertible notes EO A MR ER (3,825) (51,007)
Net cash from financing activities BMETBFEREZE 34,539 55,844
Net (decrease) in cash and ReRkREEEER

cash equivalents 2 (ORd) 35 (15,866) (5,459)
Cash and cash equivalents FUzRe AL FEEE

at the beginning of the year 33,717 37,218
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [& &R & &) v S/ £ 1,608 1,958
Cash and cash equivalents FRZ2BAESRBESEHEER

at the end of the year 23 19,459 33,717
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL

China E-Learning Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands on 10 July 2001. The shares of the Company are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section of
“Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when other indicated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
20 to the consolidated financial statements.

2. ADOPTION OF GOING CONCERN
BASIS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis notwithstanding the Group had net liabilities
of approximately HK$14,714,000 as at 31 December 2011 and
incurred a net loss of HK$32,266,000 for the year then ended.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group is
able to maintain itself as a going concern in the coming year by
taking into consideration the arrangements which include, but
are not limited to, the following:

1. The directors of the Company will continue to reduce
overheads and costs, and are exploring opportunities for
existing business with an aim to attain profitable
operations with positive cash flows;

2. The directors of the Company are considering various
alternatives to enlarge the capital base of the Company
in order to provide additional funding to the Group and
extend the maturity dates of convertible notes payables;
and

3. The directors of the Company will continue to scale down
the non-profitable operations.

1. —REHE

TEBEHEEEERAR([AAR]) AR —EF
—FLATRERSEERERASEHE R RDA (&
R EMARL 2 ZREARER AT - KRRRNETE
BAaXSmARLDR (MHM]) 8% ([8I%R])
£

ARRA MM EE R EE 2 EME 2 U BN F I,
[RR]E# —6 -

REMBHRRABIINE - BREEHEBEN  FE
BEHOERAAZRELZ TR -

ARAZEBRBRHREER - EXEMBRRZ
ETEXRBENGRA M BHRERME20

2. FRAFHECERE

BEAEBR-_T——F+_A=+—HZAEF
A B14,714,0008 AR BEZBILFEELS
1B$%032,266,0008 70 * fRE M BMERESIRFEL
EEEMBRR - RRREERA - TRIBE(ET
FRA) AT HIBEAZZH - NEBEENRFHER
KAERFECEERS

1. ARRERBEBERELTF LM LKA
VEBSRBRFERELES - AEUSEFR B
EXFREREZFER

2. ARBEZLEBBARNRAERER 2 H
RJTA  RARBESREZESURERE
MABMEREZIHA &

3. ARRERBEBRRE RN E 2 T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF GOING CONCERN
BASIS (Continued)

Based on the aforesaid measures, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare these consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to
the carrying amount and reclassification of assets and liabilities
that might be necessary should the Group be unable to continue
as a going concern.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and
revised HKFRSs (which include all HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) which are relevant to its operations and effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these consolidated financial
statements.
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R batdeiE - AR BEZENEE P BERRIRE
BREZEREUTIBEE - FAVBHRRALKREE
AEEEEAEERERSEREERRIREEE
RBEZREEREHRDBMIEL Z ER/H8EH

?__g o

3. FERMRI REETFERBR
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RAFE AEECEAUTHEESFHMNAS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

4. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 4,

HKFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

BB EEREHR
CHEN

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BB REERETHR
CHEN

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

EAMBREERETHR
(EFTA)

HKFRS 9

BB BREERFEH

HKFRS 10

AR B EER L1058

HKFRS 11

BEMBHREELE 115

HKFRS 12

BB EERFE 1258

HKFRS 13

BB E R B 1358

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

EB T ERIE15% BRIAR)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

BA G ERE 1298 (BRI A)

\:

HmEEL

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates
for First-time Adopters
BREE AR RS 8RR E 2 BEE B B

Transfers of Financial Assets

HBETMAE

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

THEERETMAREH

Financial Instruments

2T A

Consolidated Financial Statements
HENBERE

Joint Arrangements

H AL HE

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
WEREMERZ #m

Fair Value Measurement

N FlER 2

Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income
Hit 2 E K mIEE .2 25

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
BEFEFHIE - WO 1ERE &

—B-—F58

EFMERRERZETEUR

REBEIWERERE M5 MR EM 5 E R HER R
Rz FA] RS ERT BB RS LR -

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

RTH B
HERBZFE
HMBEXR

1 July 2011

—F——%+H—H

1 July 2011
—F——%+H—H

1 January 2013
—ET—=%—H—H

1 January 2015
—E2—h¥—H—H
1 January 2013

—T—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
—2—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H
1 July 2012
—T-ZH+tHA—H
1 January 2012
—ET-—F—H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F+_A=+—HIEFE

4. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HKFRSs (Continued)

4. ECHEGERRERZEEUTE
&R )

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after

RT3 H 8

HEMKZFE

BMEER

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 1 January 2013

BB T ERIE195% 1EE &7 —E—=%—H—H
(ZE2——%)

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013

BB ERIE275% B BHRE —ET—=%—HA—H
(ZE2——%)

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013

BB G ERISE 2855 RBERFIREENTZRE —ET—-=%—HA—H
(ZE2——%)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and 1 January 2014

Financial Liabilities

BEEGEREILH (BF]A) 2l -cmBERTHEGE AN —ET-WHF-H—H

HK(IFRIC) Int — 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 1 January 2013

58 (BARVMBEREREEE]) BABSLERRZ ARKA —T-=%—A—H

—2EBE20%

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is to be expected
in the period of initial application. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets
which have been measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in
full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

5. FEEFTHER @

RAMBHRRIDIBEKAERE - N XAE
S BEML - ETEREETIZ A FEME -

BOFE%E

RAMBRREBEAATREMB AR (R IA%
EDBZ-ZT——F+T_A=+—HILFENUE
R o B BRI A5 R Ty B R B AE R 9 3R
SHRTRA BN EARRRE - HBARNE
AR EE (IARERSIZHEE B) BA Hat
B UREBEa BEEXSEHERL MBS
BARrrEAER  XZALRREEARRENRS
MEEMWARBER W MEBEERE - ARAHED

B B A - B A AN RN EHER
el

PR B A R R 8 A R e O B B (R R KPR I I
AREIFERR S

AR REREE B AT A IZESIE - BlgRIEER
(\ZMBARMEE (BEME) RAE  ()\ERZEE
Rt A BRTEE ¢ R ()5t A=A RETHE N Z8
WHERONEWREBORTFE : (MEMREREHRQF
B R(iEE Mt AR RBHBIER o LAER
HME2HEBABRORNEERGE S - DEEE
BRTEFDEEBENIRBEF o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F+_A=+—HIEFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company'’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition
date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, it shall not be remeasured until it is finally
settled within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquire over the
net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F+_A=+—HIEFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Platform of network

Purchased platform of network is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or
supply of goods and services, or for administrative purpose are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Building The shorter of the lease terms
or 5%

Leasehold improvements  The shorter of the lease terms
or 20%

Plant and equipment 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%

office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F+_A=+—HIEFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than trade and
other receivables, inventories and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial asset
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or
not, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, amounts due from related
companies and associates, client trust bank balances and cash
and cash equivalents.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in interest income in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in
the income statement.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial asset (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or
losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale assets valuation reserve until the assets is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income statement
in other operating expenses and removed from the available-
for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest and dividends
earned are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the income statement as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial asset (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent
to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold
these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted only
when the entity has the ability and intent to hold until the maturity
date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate.
Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of
the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the income statement.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when (i) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or (ii) the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the income statement,
is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or
on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not
reversed.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and
comprises costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group within the scope of HKAS 39
are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and financial liabilities at amortised costs, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities
at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables
and accruals, amounts due to directors and derivative financial
instruments.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the income
statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
income statement does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial assets at amotised cost

After initial recognition, financial assets at amotised cost are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continuead)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain the
liability, conversion option and early redemption option are
classified separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, both the liability and early redemption option
components are measured at fair value. The difference between
the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible notes and the
fair value assigned to the liability and early redemption option
components respectively, representing the conversion option for
the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is included in
equity (convertible notes equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The early redemption option is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in consolidated income
statement.

The equity component, representing the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible notes equity reserve until the embedded
conversion option is exercised (in which case the balance stated
in convertible notes equity reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the conversion option remains unexercised at
the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible notes equity
reserve will be released to retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated income statement upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Convertible notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability, equity components in proportion to
the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability component and amortised
over the period of the convertible notes using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the
fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligations, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flow (where the effect is
material).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) Tuition revenue from educational programs is recognised
on a time-proportion basis, using the straight-line
method, over the duration of the relevant educational
programs.

(if) Revenue from sales of educational materials and products
is recognised when the products are delivered and title
has passed to customers.

(iif) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in the
consolidated income statement as incurred. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independent administered fund.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
payments are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision will be made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service payments as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation scheme (“Scheme”) to remunerate its
employees.

For share options granted under the Scheme, the fair
value of the employees’ services rendered in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense
immediately and credited to the share-based payment
reserve under equity. Where the employees are required
to meet vesting conditions before they become entitled
to the options, the Group recognises the fair value of the
options granted over the vesting periods. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognises the impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, and a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based payment reserve.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii) Share-based payments (Continued)

Upon exercise of the share options, the resulting shares
issued are recorded by the Company as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess
of the exercise price over the nominal value of the shares
is recorded by the Company in the share premium
account. The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based payment reserve until the option is exercised when
it is transferred to the share premium account if the
options lapse unexercised, the related share-based
payment reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary

differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences,

and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

/2

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period and their income statements are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 & &

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (i) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly,
any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. The Company assesses
annually the residual value and the useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment and if the expectation differs from the
original estimates, such differences from the original estimates
will affect the depreciation charges in the year in which the
estimates change.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability and age of the
trade and other receivables. Appropriate impairment for
estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised in the
consolidated income statement when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment on trade and other
receivables is required, the Company takes into consideration
the current creditworthiness, the past collection history, age
status and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only
made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is
recognised on the difference between the estimated future cash
flow expected to receive of which discounted by using the original
effective interest rate and its carrying value. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Company were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment may be required.

Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share options granted was calculated using the
Black-Scholes valuation model which requires the management’s
estimates and assumptions on significant calculation inputs,
including the estimated life of share options granted, the volatility
of share price and expected dividend yield. Change in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill needs impairment requires an
estimation of the value is use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flow is less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of goodwill is nil
(2010: nil) after an impairment loss of nil (2010: HK$31,506,000)
was recognised during 2010. Details of the impairment loss
calculation are disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

7. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Business segments

Over 99% of the Group’s revenue, results, assets and liabilities
are derived from the provision of occupational education, industry
certification course, skills training and education consultation,
no detailed analysis of the Group’s operating segments is
disclosed.

Geographical segments
The Group’s operations are situated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) in which its revenue was derived principally

therefrom. Accordingly, no geographical segments are
presented.

Information about a major customer

No transactions with a single external customer amount to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue during the year 2011 and 2010.
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8. REVENUE 8. WA
An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the years is as follows: AEERFAZEEBEDTAT ¢
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ExT FHIT
Tuition fee revenue HEREZ WA 39,968 37,082
Sales of educational products HEEMHEE 172 1,172
Operational software application products LB ERETE® - 321
40,140 38,575
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HhlgA
2011 2010
—E——F —T—EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FHEIT
Exchange gains, net b 5 a5 558 1 -
Interest income F B WA 102 36
Sundry income B 1,089 1,061
Gain on redemption of convertible notes BE O Al IR 2R iR 2 e 1,950 19,537
Rental income MEKA 46 -
3,188 20,634
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BERE

2011 2010
S

HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx T

Interest expenses on financial liabilities measured X EEK AT EZ SR EE

at amortised cost (note 30) Z Bz (H5E30) 6,815 14,911
Fair value changes on financial derivative (note 30) ©@/TET R 2 AFEE

(PF5E30) 155 (181)

6,970 14,730
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11. ¥R E

11. LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments
(note 12))

BB ATEIEE ks GEA)
NIIEIR

BERKN (BEESHE
(Mt3E12))

2011
—_E——F

HK$’000
FER

2010
—E—ZF
HK$’000
T T

- basic salaries and allowances —EAXFH e KEA 15,772 9,489

— contributions to defined contribution plans — EREMERE B 2 HR 300 53

- share-based payment expense (note 35) — AR ZAAZ (K3E35) - -
Total staff costs 4 E B A 16,072 9,542
Auditors’ remuneration: IZERNEN & -
- Audit service — R HIR 185 170
— Non-audit service — IEZ BAR TS 18 19
Professional fee HEXEH 7,497 3,002
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BEREETE
- included in cost of sales —BERIEERARN 16 736
- included in selling expenses —BEREERXAN 218 228
- included in administrative expenses —BERITEASZA 1,507 1,183

1,741 2,147

Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih & E 2 i - 265
Impairment losses on goodwill EE R EEE - 31,506
Impairment losses on inventories GFEREEE 121 —
Impairment losses on trade receivables 2S5 RWRTREEE 407 -
Impairment losses on other receivables H b Uk SR8 R B /&8 6,564 18,642
Losses on disposal of property, plant HEWE - HEK&E

and equipment 2 518 = (1,043)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sales HETTHEESCHEE ZEE

financial asset 106 -
Compensation of convertible notes Al AR IR 2 i E 10,860 -
Payments under operating lease for THREFLL

land and buildings MAIE TR 3,108 4,950

3,108 4,950

Exchange (gains) losses, net PN (Wam) B51E - H5 (1) 138
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEMNE
EMOLUMENTS
a. Directors’ emoluments a. EEM&

Salaries,
allowances

and benefits  Retirement Performance

Fees in kind scheme Share-based related

¢ 28 contributions payment bonuses

He REWAE BHRHEER UARIAFE REERRL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEL TAL TEL TEL TEL

For the year ended BHE-_Z2-—-%1Z§
31 December 2011 ST-HLERE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Chen Hong Yy - 2,000 - - - 2,000
Ms. Wei Jianya EREnt - 1,150 - - - 1,150
Independent Non-Executive BYFHITES
Directors
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing &% REEL 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Cheung Wai Tak David @ﬁ%i Py &ED)
(note i) 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Wu Tao (note i) BB (3T 100 - - - - 100
260 3,150 - - - 3,410
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement Performance
Fees in kmd scheme  Share-based related
e contributions payment bonuses Total
we ¥ GRS MIRRNEUE RREBEEA Bt
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL BT THL THL THIL BT
For the year ended HZ-Z-Z%1CH
31 December 2010 =t-ALEE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Chen Hong Yy - 1,000 - - - 1,000
Ms. Wang Hui (note i TELL (i) - 447 - - - 447
Ms. Wei Jianya ERGat - 400 - - - 400
Independent Non-Executive BUF#HTES
Directors
Ms. Chan Hoi Ling (note iv) Bl ZE L+ (fizEw) 27 y - - - 27
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (note v) ERERL () 29 = - - - 29
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing ,%,V\Tiﬁft 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Cheung Wai Tak David REEEA ()
(note i) 56 - - - - 56
Mr. Wu Tao (note i) RBLE (3T 41 - - - - 4

213 1,847 - - - 2,060
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12.

32

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Cheung Wai Tak was appointed on 11 June 2010.
(ii) Mr. Wu Tao was appointed on 24 June 2010.
(iif) Ms. Wang Hui was resigned on 10 June 2010.

(iv) Ms. Chan Hoi Ling was resigned on 11 June 2010.
(v) Dr. Wong Yun Kuen was resigned on 24 June 2010.

In 2011, the amounts of share-based payments were
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies

for share-based payment transactions as set out in note

5 to the financial statements. Particulars of share options

to the directors under the Company’s share option

scheme are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

None of the directors of the Company waived or agreed

to waive any emoluments paid by the Company and no

incentive payment for joining the Company or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to
any director of the Company during the two years ended

31 December 2011 and 2010.

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - PE{ARFEEEFR AT

—E——Ft+-A=t-BuLFE
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EEREENE @

EEME @)

BfIEE -

0] REREERZE—ZFTFEAT+—HEZ
£ -

(if) REEER_ZE—ZTFA-THHEZ
T

(i) FTEZITR_ZE—TATHEE-

(iv) BRAELZTR T —T AT —HEE -

(v) EEEELIN _ZE—F A -+ WHEE

£

R-T——%F RN EBDRET B R
RIGESFEAREERARIN R B2 &5t
BRFTE - REAQABBREFEETES
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F +_A=+—HILEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREENE @
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Five highest paid individuals b. AfuZE#EHAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in AEEBRNERFALTBEREARR=ZE (CE
the Group, three (2010: four) were directors of the —ZTF  WR)ES - BEZEFHMR X
Company, whose remunerations are included in the BoYNTHBERE (CE—TF: —8&)A
disclosures above. The remunerations of the remaining T2 FHMAT -

two (2010:0ne) individuals were as follows:

2011 2010
—B——-F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Salaries allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEDHS 1,043 702
Retirement scheme contributions RRET B 55 312
Share-based payment LARR 2 A 30IE - -
1,098 1,014

Their remunerations were within the following band: BEZHMERTIEEA :

Number of individuals

N
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T
% 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
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13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no Hong Kong profits
tax has been provided for as the Group did not generate any
taxable profits in Hong Kong (2010: nil).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. Under the Law of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2010: 25%).

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the loss before

tax per the consolidated income statement as follows:

13. FTie% (%) X

HE-Z——F+-A=T—HLEFE BREE
B ENEBESEAERTUEHN - WA EELE
BHEVEE(CT-—FF  8) -

HvaAEREE CRIERS @Eal AR ZBITH
K8 o BIBKRBECEMBRE) (TDEMBH
ED) RIEEMESREZERED - RERIBAR 2
FRER25% (ZFE—FF : 25%) °

REFE RIS TELR S W K < R A E 1R 4 Rk 1
T

2011 2010

—E2——F —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHEIT

Loss before tax brEiAIEE (32,266) (52,079)

Tax at respective applicable tax rates LHRBERMRESE IR (5,324) (8,593)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR HAZ 2 G2

tax purposes 1,152 6,180

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes /BRI A 7 T £ (5,900) (1,701)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERVIEBB BB E 10,072 4,114

Income tax for the year REFZHFTER

14. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2011, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2010: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F +_A=+—HILEFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss
for the year attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$39,007,000 (2010: HK$51,898,000), and
based on the weighted average number of shares in issue during
the year of approximately 1,377,821,471 ordinary shares (2010:
1,001,205,000), as adjusted to reflect the issue of new shares,
bonus shares and shares by conversion of convertible notes
during the year.

No diluted loss per share has been presented for 2011 and 2010
as the share options and convertible notes outstanding have
anti-dilutive effects on the basic loss per share amounts
presented.

16. GOODWILL

15. Bikk51E

EREABEIBEAFERNAGFEAELER
4939,007,0008 7T (— FE—Z 4 : 51,898,000/8
70) ¢ A RASTRE A RF ABITIRG - AARREA
AR E RS MBI 2 F R BTG M
BT EE 41,377,821 471/ (2 —ZTF :
1,001,205,000%) E@ARETE ©

A 1R R AT 48 2 R AL e Al R IR SR 9B B P 2. 51 2 B AR
EXERSBAAREEUR - U B2 —F—
—FR_ZFE-ZEF2EREEEE -

16. HE

The Group
REE
HK$’000
FBTT
Cost BRAR
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 and 2011 R=_ZE—ZFF—HF—H  —Z—ZF K
—E——%+=-A=+—H 679,104
Accumulated Impairment ?ﬁfﬁiﬁ
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 RZBENF+_A=+t—RAKEK=-_ZE—ZF—H—H 647,598
Impairment losses recognised during the year — F N#R 2 B (B & 1B 31,506
At 31 December 2010 and 2011 RZE-—TFR-F——F+=-A=+—H 679,104
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=-A=+—8 -
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZEF+=-A=+—H -
Note: BEE
Goodwill arose on acquisition of subsidiaries, IIN Medical (BVI) BEIR_ZTZ jlillflﬁl +=HUREBEHB A
Group Limited (“lIN Medical (BVI)”) and its subsidiaries on 23 MEBEBVIEE AR AT (TEIFELBV).) &ﬁﬁﬁ
April 2009. BRARSEL o

ii. Goodwill arose on acquisition of non-controlling interests of
Hunan IIN Medical Network Technology Development Company
Limited, a subsidiary of IIN Medical (BVI), in May 2009.

i, ?‘ﬁi“iTﬁBA——\, TNFR AN EZEBV)ZHE
— A N B RS R AR AR AR 2 IEE
Hﬂ& SERFEAE o
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16.

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

86

Acquisition of New Beida Business Study Net Group

Limited (“New Beida”)

As at the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group had
performed an impairment testing of goodwill arose on
acquisition of New Beida with reference to a valuation
carried out by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited
(“LCH”), an independent qualified valuer. As New Beida
sustained a negative cash flow for the year ended 31
December 2009 and such position was expected to
continue in the foreseeable future, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that the income approach
was inappropriate to reflect the value of New Beida as at
31 December 2009. The asset-based approach had been
adopted for the valuation for the year ended 31 December
2009, as opposed to the valuation carried out by LCH
for the year ended 31 December 2008 where the income
approach was adopted. Based on the business valuation,
the Group had recognised an impairment loss of
HK$326,115,000 in relation to goodwill arose on
acquisition of New Beida for the year ended 31 December
2009 (2008: HK$321,483,000). As a result, the goodwill
arose on acquisition of New Beida was identified to be
fully impaired.

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - PE{ARFEEEFR AT

—E-—F+ZA=+—HILFE

16. BE »

7892 Rk (BRI =

-

WREFTIEA B 22
AJ)

HEEBR A ([#71L

HE_ZTNF+-A=T—HLEFE K
EBE2EBUABRGEMABEITAZMNA
PR ([RI5E1T)) FrfE 2 (1E - ErTE UGS
L AEEBRZBRENR - BRFIEXR
REBEEZTZNF+ A=+ —BLFER
B P AR RE - Mz R BEINA] B K
RANATFE - NARESRA - WAETHE
AERMHIEARZZEZNF+ZA=1+—H
ZEE BEEELIEEMEABZE-ZZT
NEFTZA=ZT—RHIEFEZHERE M
MBTARBEE_ETEN\F+A=1T—H
LIEFERAWAEEITIAE - BN LM ER
HE AEBRREBEE-_ZTALF+_A=1+
—AIEFEERE@EWRENILAMELR
2 R{EE1E3826,115,0008 T (ZEEN
£ : 321,483,000%57T) © At - AUEEFETIE
AMEEAZHEERAERZEURE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

fi.

Acquisition of IIN Medical (BVI)

As at the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group has
performed an impairment testing of goodwill arose on
acquisition of IIN Medical (BVI) with reference to a
valuation carried out by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited,
pbased on cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets for the next five years with a
discount rate of 17.83%. The directors of the Company
were of the opinion, based on the business valuation,
that there the group had recognised an impairment loss
of HK$31,506,000 in relation to goodwill arose from the
acquisition of IIN Medical (BVI) as at 31 December 2010.
As a result, the goodwill of HK$31,506,000 on acquisition
of IIN Medical (BVI) was identified to be fully impaired.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill has been
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. The
key factors for the value in use calculation are discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes in revenue
and direct costs. Capital Asset Pricing Model has been
adopted to estimate the discount rate by using market
data of other companies with business similar to [IN
Medical (BVI). The growth rate is based on the historical
Consumer Price Index of the PRC. Changes in revenue
and direct costs are based on past performance of IIN
Medical (BVI) and management’s expectation of the
market development.

BE

2 E R @)

e 7% B 51 25 Z5(BV)

HE_ZT-ZFE+_AZ+—HIEFE &
EB2RPIATEAERAGMEL 2EE - 5t
U BB RN B8 BBV E A 2 B #E T RE
BE - BRAMBEDRBRERINARRAFIIKX
TEE (BRIRE17.83%) MHET 2R ERETEA
BT c ARABIESERA  BEBEZEKEHE -
AEEERR T —ZF+_A=+—HE
Wir B (B 57 B8 4 (B V) ifn = A2 2 P B T AR (E /S
831,506,000/ 7T © [E bt - P Ui B A7 28 2
(BVI)ifi 2 & 2 231,506,000/ T E 1R A &
2HUAE °

HEZAKESECREREEAEELES
EeoFABEBENE IZEAZANEREE
PRAZBEIRF B RERIAEED) - EXE
ETEEACERWM - DA F e A B %
BV ERU R 2 Bt AR 2 TR
ETERIRE o« MEERDIENFEZBEREED
BIREETE - W REERA 228 IR E
Bl BEBV)« BERBAREEEEHMISE
B 2BEmMEL -
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HibhEBEEE
The Group
A%E
HK$’000
AT

Cost R

At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZFF—H—H 45,504
Exchange realignment & 3 & 2,690
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZEF+-_A=+—H 48,194
Exchange realignment ME W S 2,401
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+=_A=+—8H 50,595

Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment Z:H# & KRE

At 1 January 2010 RN—ZE—ZEF—H—H 45,239
Charge for the year FAFHR 265
Exchange realignment Rk 2,690
At 31 December 2010 R-ZZE—ZEF+-_A=+—H 48,194
Exchange realignment ME W A 2,401
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F+-A=+—H 50,595
Carrying amounts REE

At 31 December 2011 RZ_E——F+ZA=+—8H -
At 31 December 2010 R_ZE—ZF+_A=+—H -

88 CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEEKRFFEEHRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & &= —

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

T —F A= —HILFRE

18. W% - BERRE

EQUIPMENT
a. The Group a. ZA&EHE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office
Leasehold Plantand  equipment Motor
improvements Building  machinery  ffil £E vehicles Total
HENERE BF BERKE RBAZRE "E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Cost S
At 1 January 2010 N_E-T5-A—-H 3,077 428 10,031 3,719 - 18,255
Additions NE - - - 222 378 600
Disposal e (1,807) (1,449 - ) - (3.254)
Reclassification ENAE - - (10,031) 10,031 - -
Exchange realignment E R HE 25 15 - 151 - 191
At 31 December 2010 “Z-EF+-A=1-H 1,295 - - 14,119 378 15,792
Additions RE 137 - - 397 - 534
Disposal e - - - (677) - (677)
Reclassification BN E (416) - - 416 - -
Exchange realignment ERAZ 24 - - 696 19 739
At 31 December 2011 W_Z2-—%+-A=+—-H 1,040 - - 14,951 397 16,388
Accumulated depreciation ZAHERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2010 R-E-EF5—-F-H 620 349 6,075 2,479 - 9,523
Charge for the year EMiR 615 60 - 1,288 125 2,088
Disposal e (290) (412) - - - (702)
Reclassification EEipz - - (6,075) 6,075 - -
Exchange realignment B R HE - 8 - 97 - 100
At 31 December 2010 “E-ZF+-fF=1-H 945 - - 9,939 125 11,009
Charge for the year FREHR 223 - - 1,305 218 1,741
Disposal e - - - (669) - (669)
Reclassification ENNE (187) ~ - 187 - -
Exchange realignment ERAZ 10 - - 517 11 538
At 31 December 2011 R=B--f+-F=1-H 991 - - 11,279 349 12,619
Carrying amounts EHE
At 31 December 2011 R=B--f+-F=1-H 49 - - 3,672 48 3,769
At 31 December 2010 “Z2-ZE+-A=1-H 350 - - 4,180 258 4,783
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 18. ¥1¥ - BMERRE @
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

PN/

4l

b. The Company b.

Furniture,
fixtures
and office
equipment

wM o KB
EWAERE
HK$’000
THAT

Cost
At 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010

e
W-F-F5-A-AK
—E-FE+-A=+-F

11

Additions nE 57
At 31 December 2011 R-E——FT-_H=+T—H 68
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 ITERBE

At 1 January 2010 RZE-TF—-H—AH 3
Charge for the year FRFHE 2
At 31 December 2010 RZE-—ZTF+=-A=+—H 5
Charge for the year FAFHE 10
At 31 December 2011 RZF——F+_/=+—H 15
Carrying amounts SREE

At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+_A=+-—H e
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZTF+_H=+—H 6

19. OJHHESREE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS

The Group and the Company

AEERAEARAA
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Listed equity securities at fair value ERERES AT E

- In Hong Kong —&/B 3,800 9,250
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RMIBATIZIRE
The Company
P NN
2011 2010
—E——fF —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THBxT FB7T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT - AR 800,012 800,012
Less: impairment losses on investment costs BB RAZREEE (800,011) (800,011)
1 1

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and BB Ra 2 & hEEE RENEETER

have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of these

amounts approximate to their fair value.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2011

are as follows:

Name of company

RNAEE

China E-Learning
(Hong Kong) Limited
HEREAE (BR)BRLA

Happy Victory Investments
Limited (note a)

Happy Victory Investments
Limited (fff3+a)

New Beida Business
StudyNet Group Limited
FEAEEHEEERAA

Best Boom Enterprises
Limited

Best Boom Enterprises
Limited

Beijing Hua Tuo Education
Technology Company
Limited (note b)

ERERYERHARAT
(Ff¥5+p)

Place of incorporation/
registration/operations

AL G R

Hong Kong
BE

BVI
RERAES

BVI
RERRES

BVI
RERZES

PRC
RE

TENBATR-T——

LI

Issue and fully paid
up share capital/
registered capital
BORBRERER/
aEX

Ordinary shares HK$1
1ATERR

Ordinary shares US$10
10ETE AR

Ordinary shares
US$10,000
10,000 L& @i

Ordinary shares US$10
10ETE AR

Registered capital
HK$40,000,000
40,000,000/ 7T 7 &

Proportion ownership
interest held by the

Company
AARABERARERLY
Directly  Indirectly

EE B
100% -
100% -
100% -

- 100%
- 100%

H - ZEREREAEERE QN FERS -

FH-A=t—RZHE

Principal activities

TEER

Provision of management
services to group
companies

MEBERRREER RS

Dormant

TEXH

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

Provision of occupational
education, industry
certification course,
skills training and
education consultation

REBEAR
TERERE

RERIRAEEN
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of company registration/operations RARBRRE/
NEER SR SR REeE  EmEX
Beijing Ke Xiong Education PRC Registered capital
Gompany Limited (note b) H RMB5,000,000
ERMEHEERAR (Fi5tb) ARH5,000,0007 M E A
Beijing Yi You Xing PRC Registered capital
Service and Technology H RMB2,000,000
Development Company AR #2,000,0007C 7 & &
Limited (note b and ¢)
LR RENEERARAT
(Fi7Eb o)
IIN Medical (BVI) Group BVI Ordinary shares
Limited KBRS HK$13,677,288
ANEEBVIERERA A 13,677,288 T L @M%
IIN Medical Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares
HREREERRAF Bk HK$3,000,000
3,000,000/ 0 & i &
Hunan IIN Medical Network PRC Registered capital
Technology Development F RMB14,530,808
Company Limited (note b) AR#14,530,8087C
WMAEBERERERE AR
BRAF (M5Eh)
Distance Education College PRC Registered capital
of Beijing University of H RMB900,000
Chinese Medicing AR%900,0007
R EEABYLRER AR
HEER
Notes: B &E
a. This subsidiary was transferred to executive directors Mr. Chen a.
Hong on 14 April 2010.
b. These are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established in the b.
PRC.
C. This subsidiary was deregistered on 21 October 2010. c.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Place of incorporation/

Issue and fully paid
up share capital/
registered capital

Proportion ownership

interest held by the

Company
AARBEREARERLY
Directly  Indirectly
EE B

- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

- 51%

20. RMIBATZIRE »#

Principal activities

TEREHR

Provision of occupational
education, industry
certification course,
skills training and
education consultation
I%RERE
B R AE 33

Provision of occupational
education, industry
certification course,
skills training and
education consultation
TERBERE
BeEI R AR 33

Investment holding
RER

Investment holding
REHEMR

Investment holding

RERK

Provision of distance
learning program
in Chinese medicine
RUABERRYRRE

ZHBARER B —ZF M A + A #EETHRT

BEERELLE -

ZERETRKLZINEBERE -

ZHBARER - E—2F+AT+—HIH -

RELIFREMEE

B
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21. INVENTORIES 21. 58

The Group
AEE
2011 2010

—2——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT

Finished goods BUPK i - 103

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B5 & i {th FEI AR =X

The Group The Company

REE KN F]
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——F —E—TF —E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T TET T
Trade receivables H 5 W AR 5K 1,391 1,313 = -
Less: impairment losses B R EEE (1,391) (916) - -
- 397 - -

Deposits and other Ee RHEM

receivables FE W 5K IR 97,404 39,664 1,276 12
Less: impairment losses B R EEE (27,613) (19,818) - -
Prepayments SEENE G 26,969 41,905 25,760 1,184
96,760 62,148 27,036 1,196
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B5 R HEMEWKIRE =
(Continued)

An aging analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the B RYERRR R E R RZRRATAOT
reporting period is as follows:

The Group The Company
rEH PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
=% —F—%F —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THERT FHTT TET T
Within 30 days 308 A - - = -
31 to 60 days 31HE60H M - - - -
61 to 90 days 61H Z90H - - - -
Over 90 days H#®I0H - 397 - -

= 397 - -

General credit term that the Group offers to customers is 30 REBE-—RAEFREHEERERARIIOENEER
days from billing. Trade receivables disclosed above include Ho FXBEBR ESRINERBERREHRE R
amounts which are past due at the end of the reporting period H7FIE B EEERUEERE L RZERA
for which the Group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful WA BAYE - A B B RER R R -
debts because there has not been a significant change in credit

quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s trade and other RERERR  AEBZEHREMEWERRTE
receivables were individually determined to be impaired. The FEEREHZRE o ERRE 2 EUGIBTIRE
individually impaired receivables are recognised based on the HEP Z{=E48 (B B 2 i R 3R08) RIETT
credit history of customers, such as financial difficulties or default TRER - AREVESEZEERITEEMERD
in payments, and current market conditions. The Group does

not hold any collateral over these balances.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B5 R HMEWKIRS =
(Continued)

The Group’s movement for provision of impairment of trade AEEERESRKRFUREREBZEFHWMT
receivables is as follows:

The Group The Company
KE PN

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——F —E—TF —E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FH THT TR THR
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 916 916 - -
Impairment losses BEEE 407 - - -
Exchange realignment bE 3 5 2 68 - - -
At 31 December Rt+ZR=+—H 1,391 916 - -

The Group’s movement for provision of impairment of other AEEEHEMERFTIERERECZSHIT
receivables is as follows:

The Group The Company
rEH PN

2011 2010 2011 2010
=—E——-F —E-FF —E2——-F —ET-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
THERT FHTT TET FHETT
At 1 January w—H—H 19,818 1,176 - -
Impairment losses FEEE 6,564 18,642 80,207 -
Exchange realignment ME W 1,231 - - -
At 31 December R+=ZH=1—H 27,613 19,818 80,207 -
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23. e RAESZHIEH

The Group The Company
&M P NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g—-% -2-%F —g¥—-%& —Z-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T TET T T
Bank balances IR1T4E 84 18,685 29,226 980 10,985
Cash balances N & 4R 95 175 14 67
Cash in licensed REFEEE 2 RE
corporation 679 4,316 679 4,316
Cash and cash equivalents RiERERER
in the consolidated Ziﬁbﬁ&fﬁﬁ
statement of cash flow £BEER 19,459 33,717 1,673 15,368
Cash and deposits with banks of HK$17,786,000 RNEEZIH € RIRTTFF17,786,0008 0 (T —=F
(2010:HK$15,981,000) for the Group are denominated in £ 115,981,000 7T) IAAREETME » T AR
Renminbi, which is not a freely convertible currency and the JEEREBRER [ BB NE R BB B BT
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange INEEE HIFRR o
control imposed by the PRC government.
Deposits with banks are interest bearing at the prevailing market RITHEFIRIBITTEFEGTE o
rates.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, ESREMEMFIRER
The Group The Company

REME KR F]
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——fF —T—ZF —E——fF —E—2F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FH& T FABTT THBxT AT
Trade payables 5 ENERR 13 28 - =
Other payables E fth e 7008 25,422 5,570 10,960 100
Receipt in advance FE U FIE 19,689 21,786 - -
Accrued charges FEETE R 206 3,408 206 968
45,330 30,792 11,166 1,068

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of reporting B ORNERRBSHARZERTOT
period is as follows:

The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—®——F —E-TF —®——F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FH&T FT#ExT FHIT
Within 30 days 30BA - - - -
31 to 60 days 31HZE60H A - - - -
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H A - 1 - -
Over 90 days @m0 H 13 27 - -
13 28 - -
25. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 25. BRESNRIE
The Group and the Company AEBERARAQF
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ERAFBEAEER RENAREXEEER - AR
demand. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair AEERE  ENESZEATEEEAREERD
value of the amounts due to directors approximates to its BEE -

corresponding carrying amount.
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26.

(a)

98

DEFERRED TAXATION 26. BEBLIIE

The Group (a ZA&EHE

The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities RERE BT ISR R R AR 2 IBIERIE (B E)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BEAKE D KRR FAN 2 EEHMT

position and the movements during the years are as
follows:

Accelerated tax
Depreciation Tax losses Total

MEBERE BIEER ECE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET T

At 1 January 2009 and R_-ZEZENF—A—HBK

31 December 2009 —EENF+TZA=1+—H 8 (8) -
Movement for the year & N & 20 (20) -
At 31 December 2010 R_ZT—ZF+_H=+—H 28 (28) -
Movement for the year ~ F & 42 (42) =
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+=-_A=+—H 70 (70) -
At the end of the reporting date, the Group had estimated REEEAR - NEEGE A AEHHER R
the unused tax losses of approximately HK$127,486,000 Mz RBABIEEIE L /127,486,000 7T
(2010: HK$92,825,000) available for offset against future (ZZ—Z 4 : 92,825,000/87C) ° HAKAE
profits. No deferred tax assets have been recognised in TEORISR 2 0a I 2ROR - B0 B ph 5% SRS IE R
respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future BETIBEE - ZEHIERBER A
profit streams. The tax losses can be carried forward L3
indefinitely.

The Company (b) AT

At the end of the reporting date, the Company had RIMERR  NARERBA 2 HRIBEIEL
unused tax losses of approximately HK$110,391,940 110,391,940/8 70 (ZE—Z 4 : 88,766,262
(2010: HK$88,766,262) available for offset against future PETT) AT FTESE R AOEF) o A ARBETRAIAR
profits. No deferred tax assets have been recognised in FE TR - I B ZEEIBERIELES
respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future HEE - 2 EVHEEER] BR AL -

profit streams. The tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. IE=X
The Group and the Company REBRAQT
Number of
shares Share capital
RAEE B& Z<
HK$’000
FE T
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each NRZEBEEhE+-_A=+—H
at 31 December 2009 BREESE T EBR 2,000,000,000 1,000,000
Increase of authorized capital VA TE A& 7N 38 1 a 8,000,000,000 4,000,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each R-E-—ZFR-_ZT——F
at 31 December 2010 and 2011 t-A=+—HEREE
0.5B T2 EBR 10,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBZEKA :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each RZZEZNF+-A=+—H
at 31 December 2009 and ;EZF-—FF—H—H
1 January 2010 BREBECSE L EBR 472,563,895 236,282
Issue of shares by conversion of AR R iR R
convertible notes M B 1T AR D b 170,220,799 85,110
Issue of shares by open offer EHAREEEITRGD c 222,661,915 111,331
Issue of shares by bonus issue B ZEITAL R AR 1 T 3247 AR {7 c 445,323,830 222,662
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each RZE—ZEF+-_H=+—H
at 31 December 2010 BREBECSE L, EBR 1,310,770,439 655,385
Issue of shares by conversion of TR ERE
convertible notes BEIR BT IR d 170,515,381 85,258
Being the cancellation of ordinary FEIHEEO.508 L Eim A
shares at par value HK$0.50 e (16,944,000) (8,472)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each R=-E——F+=-H=+—H
at 31 December 2011 EREEISBTZ2EER 1,464,341,820 732,171
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27.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

1 OO CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEEKRFFEEHRAT

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 11 May 2010, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares to
HK$5,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares by the
creation of additional 8,000,000,000 shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, convertible notes in
the principal amount of HK$168,423,879 were converted by
holders to subscribe for 170,220,799 shares. Details of the
conversion during the year are set out in note 31.

On 31 May 2010, the open offer of 222,661,915 offer shares at
HK$0.50 on the basis of 7 offer shares for every 20 shares with
bonus issue on the basis of 2 bonus shares for every offer share
taken up became unconditional.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, convertible notes in
the principal amount of HK$91,130,547 were converted by
holders to subscribe for 170,515,381 shares. Details of the
conversion during the year are set out in note 30.

On 18 October 2011, the Company repurchased 16,944,000
shares at par value of HK$0.50.

RESERVES
The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
46 of the annual report.

27.

i NI

AREERARQNT &)

fi i

BERZZ—SFRA+—ABBZEEAZE
QB2 A E IR #E 15 58.8,000,000,000 % fZ 15
£11,000,000,000/% 7T (% 42,000,000,000% A& 1)
3# hnZ=5,000,000,0007% 7t (% A10,000,000,0004%
3) e

HE-_Z-THFE+_A=+—ALFE iRz
BiEH NEHRA S 5168,423,8797%8 T 2 A ik 2=
& DARREE170,220,799B8 B8 15 © R Z AL FHIB
BAKIFEST ©

RZZE—ZFRA=1+—R0  BE_+RIRHER
AR E R TR — AR E IR B AR R AR AL F
R zHEE  LERKRMHOS0BTAMES
222,661,915/ & M (H 2 A F SR ARG -
HE-_T——F+-_A=+—BLLFE THEKE
BiEA AEIBAEE1,130,6478 T 2 Al AR E
& DARREE170,515,381M A%  F R ZALFHIB
A KIES0 ©

R=ZE——F+A+/\B  ARQ7EHE16,944,000
% & A% E 1E.0.5058 7T 2 B 15 °
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28. RESERVES (continueq)

(b)

The Company

28. fi#E =@

(b)

ZANYN

Share-based  Conversion
Share payment  note equity Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
REE URXARE TERES Eafe A BES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT THT THL TAT
At 31 December 2009 and RIZBAETZA=+-H
1 January 2010 EZE-%5-R—-H 229,144 43,483 137,964 (844,409) (433,818)
Total comprehensive loss FEEZEBRESR
for the year = - - (5,565) (5,565)
Equity component of MHEREE 2 RiESH
convertible notes 30 - - 4,561 - 4,561
Issue of new shares by REMREESETHRN
top-up placing 27 (222,662) - - - (222,662)
Issue of shares by conversion R AR Z 5 #
of convertible notes EamETRG 30 128,352 - (71,917) - 56,435
Share issue expenses Ring&RY (4,480) - - - (4,480)
Redemption of convertible note @A #REE 30 - - (20,920) - (20,920)
At 31 December 2010 “2-ZF+-A=+-H 130,354 43,483 49,688 (849,974) (626,449)
Total comprehensive loss TFEERAFEER
for the year - (28,989) - (11,518) (40,507)
Reclassification of settled BABEEN
convertible notes JIRREE 30 30,267 - (30,267) - -
Reclassification of settled BABEEN
convertible notes LTHRREE 30 - - (80,012) - (80,012)
Settlement of convertible note ERf TR EE 30 - - 64,915 - 64,915
Equity component of MRREE 2 RiESH
convertible notes 30 - - 17,623 - 17,623
Issue of shares by conversion of R A ARERE
convertible notes ERMETHRY 30 5,873 - (12,956) - (7,089)
Redemption of convertible note -~ BB A[ R E 15 30 - - (950) - (950)
Being cancellation of ordinary  ##HEE0.50%8 T2 LBK
shares at par value HK$0.50 27 4,835 - - - 4,835
At 31 December 2011 RZE——5F+ZfA=+—H 171,329 14,494 8,041 (861,492) (667,628)
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28.

(b)

29.

RESERVES (Continued)
The Company (Continued)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the excess
of the nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium account of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation over the nominal value of
the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s Articles of Association, the share
premium of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. At 31 December
2011, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company did not have any reserve available for
distribution to shareholders (2010: Nil).

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair
value of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy
for share-based payment transactions in note 34 to the
financial statements. The amount will either be transferred
to the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to accumulate losses
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

OTHER LOAN

The amount represents an amount due to the former shareholder

of New Beida which is unsecured, interest-free. In the opinion

of the directors of the Company, the fair value of other loan

approximates to its carrying amount. This amount has been fully

settled by issuing Convertible note 2011 A during year of 2011.
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The Group and the Company

Acquisition of 100% interest in New Beida

On 27 February 2008, pursuant to the acquisition of 100%

interest in New Beida from Sino Tactic Group Limited (the

“Vendor”), the Company issued zero coupon convertible notes

(the “Convertible Notes 2008”) as partial settlement of the

acquisition consideration.

The principal terms of the Convertible Notes 2008 are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount
Denomination in multiple of

27 February 2008
HK$720,000,000
HK$20,000,000

Interest rate Nil

Adjusted conversion price

HK$0.98 (HK$0.20)

(previously reported)

Maturity date

(@)

36 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period

Apart from the portion of Restricted Convertible Notes
(as described below), the holders of the Convertible Notes
2008 shall have the rights at any time and from time to
time, following the date of issue of the Convertible Notes
2008, to convert the whole or any part of the outstanding
principal amount into new ordinary shares in the
Company. The shares to be issued and allotted upon
conversion shall rank pari passu in all respects among
themselves and with all other ordinary shares in issue by
the Company on the date of such allotment and issue.

Restricted convertible notes

Part of the Convertible Notes 2008 in principal amount
of HK$150 million (the “Restricted Convertible Notes”)
was under security to the Company for the purpose of
ensuring that the Profit Guarantee (as described below)
is fulfilled.

30. Tk RiR

REBRARAT

YWEE FT4E K ,2100% 1 2

R-ZEZN\F A =++tA8 ' AMSino Tactic Group
Limited ([& 77 )) WBEFTIER 2 100% 5 - AN &%

TEEABMBRER ([ —TEN\FABRRREE]) X
B W HAE -

“ET)\FUBBRERZ T ZGEROT ¢

%47 B Hf —EENF-_A-++H

EINC¥ 720,000,000/ 7T

H 20,000,000 7T 2 fE 8k

BR =

KRR B 0.98% 7t (0.207% L)
(SCAIfER)

FERE 1T HEREET361E A

(@ BRE

BERHATEEER FHARTO 282
S —EZENFABRBRERFAEAR_ST
NFEAR R REER 2 %17 A HE - ARERR
T 2 BB AR D 2 REREA S EE R
RARA LB - RERESTEITR
AC 28 2 B 40 1820tk Je BN 22 B 0 o% B e 3 e 3%
TEMMERMEETEBRES THAZE
BREEFHA -

(o) ERHFTRRERE

—EE) N \FHUBEREBETAESES
150,000,000/ 7T 2 #87 ([ 5 B8 I Al #2 B =
BHDERTARRRE @ (ERHRAIEITH
BRE AR T 2HEM -
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in New Beida (Continued)

(©)

1 04 CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEEKRFFEEHRAT

Issuer early redemption option

The Company shall have the right to redeem any portion
of the Convertible Notes 2008 outstanding at an amount
equals to the principal amount of the Convertible Notes
2008 in its sole and absolute discretion at any time prior
to the maturity date.

The Convertible Notes 2008 contain liability component,
equity component and early redemption option
derivatives. The issuer early redemption option derivative
is not closely related to the host contract as the early
redemption amount is not close to the amortised cost of
the liability on the redemption date. Issuer early
redemption option derivative are measured at fair value
with change in fair value recognised in consolidated
income statement.

Profit guarantee

The Vendor undertakes to the Company that the
aggregate profits after tax shown in the audited
consolidated accounts of New Beida prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles for the financial year ended 31
December 2008 shall not be less than HK$150 million
and will compensate the Company for any shortfall
between the guaranteed profits and the actual aggregate
profits after tax shown in the audited consolidated
accounts of New Beida prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
for the financial year ended 31 December 2008.

30. TIRIRER @)
AREERARQNT &)

W FERTIE K 2 100% 12 25 (4)

©

BRTAREHEDEEE

RRATERERENE B A8 B 2R E Y
BEREBOEMED Z MARTEZ —TF
NFARERE  @BHESR-FF/\FH
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—ET)N\FAREZEREEAENS - g
Mo RIRFEEEEEITETA - BITAR
PEOEEENTETAEIANL BRI
& DHARREFERERATRIAENE
Bl B2 #HEA AR - 1T AR R ROE 20T
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BHRAARAREHE  FEREREEARE
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in New Beida (Continued)

(d)

Profit guarantee (Continued)

The Restricted Convertible Notes will be stake held by
the Company for the purpose of ensuring the Profit
Guarantee requirement is fulfilled according to the
acquisition agreement entered into by the Company and
the Vendor on 16 October 2007 while the Vendor
undertakes not to exercise the conversion rights attaching
on the Restricted Convertible Notes during the Profit
Guarantee Period and up to 31 March 2009. In the event
that the Restricted Convertible Notes under security to
the Company is not sufficient to cover the compensation
amount due to the shortfall from the Profit Guarantee,
the Vendor will be liable to pay the Company in cash for
any outstanding compensation amount on a dollar for
dollar basis after offsetting the amount represented by
the Restricted Convertible Notes.

Based on the 2008 audited financial results of New Beida,
the profit guarantee requirement was not fulfilled and the
Group had set off the amount of the shortfall as calculated
in accordance with the acquisition agreement dated 16
October 2007 against the principal amount of the
Restricted Convertible Notes, with the remaining balance
of approximately HK$565,000 against the other loan as
at 31 December 2008.

The directors of the Company have assessed the fair
value of the Convertible Notes 2008 with embedded
derivative. At 31 December 2010, the liability component
of the Convertible Notes is approximately HK$75,102,000
which is stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method and the fair value of the derivative
component of the Convertible Notes 2008 is
approximately HK$316,000 of asset and HK$315,000
of liability (2009: HK$316,000 of asset). The effective
interest expenses of Convertible Notes 2008 amounting
to approximately HK$14,267,000 have been recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2010.

30. TIRIRER @
REBRARQT #)
W BT 1L A 2 100% #E 25 (48)

(d)

MBERE (B8)

XRHATRRRBBAARLBRE - AR
BRARNREESTR _ZZLF+A XA

R WiBH= - BITABREZER - &
TREAR  RAUBREHANEE_TE

NE=ZA=+—HRBL  TETEZRHIA
BEREAH R o MW T AR 22X
PR I AT MR R BT B A E R AR R ERE R

MATHENRE  WESTKEAERER
Z BERELR P RANR B S EM AR EERS
B (REHEIRIAITBRERAARZEER
&) o

RZZZENF+ZA=+—8 " BEHFILX

“ETN\FEERMBER  WAREDF
/FEM%LK/\ CEEAEBEERRBR ST LT
FA+SNBZWERZOFTERR - FZR
%\J‘Hﬁﬂ EBZ2ASERAERETRNS
B W E b B R K S5 82 50 49565,00078

HI“*'

RAAREFENEEERARNNTELIA 2 Z
T N\FURBREBEHATFE RZE—F
F+-A=1+—H8 TRREEZEEID
#9575,102,000/8 7T - ThfE B EBRN E0EIL
R AR M-S ENFABRER Y
MTET AL ATFEL AEES16,0008 7T
MBE315,0008 L (ZETNF  BE
316,000 7T) « —EZNFARKEEZE
B F| BRI S 414,267,000 7T » EREZE—
T-TFEF+ A+ HUEFEZHEANRES
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in New Beida (Continued)

(d) Profit guarantee (Continued)

30. T[RRERE &

AREERARDT &)

(d)

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation

of the Convertible Notes 2008 are as follows:

Valuation of liability component

At the date of issue, the liability component was

recognised at fair value. The fair value of liability

component was calculated based on the present value

of the initial recognition contractually determined stream

of future cash flows discounted at the required yield,

which was determined with reference to the average yield

of notes with similar credit rating and remaining time to

maturity. In subsequent periods, the liability component

is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest

method. The effective interest rate of the liability

component is 12.29%.

Valuation of issuer early redemption option derivative

Binomial model is used for valuation of issuer early

redemption option derivative. The inputs into the model

were as follows:

27 February 2008
“EE\-A-ttH
Stock Price HK$0.93
RE 0.93% 7
Exercise price HK$0.20
IRE 0.20% 7
\olatility 57.77%
il 57.77%
Option life 36 months
BRESR 3618 A
Risk free rate 2.009%
BRI 2.009%

31 December 2008
“2FN\Ft=A=t-8

HK$0.50
0507
HK$0.20
02087

67.15%
67.15%
26 months
26{3 A
0.567%
0.567%
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WEEFTIEX 2100% 7 (8)

MBRE (B8

R-ZBZEN\FABREBREERER A
RARERAT -

BEHD 2 AE

RETHE BEFH» HRATERR - B
EID < AFEDBEV L ERETARETE
ZARBEERENEAEMTE @ LETFTWEE
KPR - MBE WS RN2RBEETRLE
B HA A R ML 2 BEM T RE R
MEFE - RIEEHRE - AEHHERERA
BORRB AR - BEH S 2 BBRFI=H
£12.29% °

RITAIEFPEBCEZREIETAZIGE
RBETARFELEERTETAMERD
FERA-BAERL - REZHASHAT

31 December 2009 31 December 2010

“EEAEYZA=t-AB ZE-ZET-A=1-H
HK$0.30 HK$0.31
030% T 031
HK$0.98 (adjusted HK$0.63
due to the placing 0.63%7T
of shares and
share consolidation)
0.98% T (AR ERA
RETROEHNAE)
50.67% 41,59%
50.67% 41,59%
14 months 2 months
14{8 A 28 A
0.27% 0.22%
0.27% 0.22%
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)
Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical (BVI)

On 283 April 2009, pursuant to the acquisition of 61.27% interest
in IIN Medical (BVI) from Multico Holdings Limited (“Vendor A”)
and 38.73% from a group of minority shareholders (“Vendor B”),
the Company issued convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes

2009”) as partial settlement of the acquisition consideration.

The principal terms of the Convertible Notes 2009 are as follows:

Date of issue 283 April 2009
Aggregate principal amount HK$32,770,000
Denomination in multiple of HK$200,000
Interest rate Nil
Adjusted conversion price HK$1.01 (HK$1.57)
(previously reported)
Maturity dates Principal amount approximately

HK$20,150,000 matured in 48
months from the date of issue
and the remaining principal
amount of approximately
HK$12,620,000 matured in 24
months from the date of issue

(a) Conversion period

The holders of the Convertible Notes 2009 shall have
the rights to convert the whole or any part of the
outstanding principal amount into new ordinary shares
in the Company. The commencement dates of conversion
fall within the period from 31 December 2009 to 30 June
2012. The shares to be issued and allotted upon
conversion shall rank pari passu in all respects among
themselves and with all other ordinary shares in issue by
the Company on the date of such allotment and issue.

30. OJRIRERE &
AREBRARQT @)

W B [ 57 B8 Z5(BV/I), 22 100% 12 75
R-ZTTAFMNA = +=8 - BAMultico Holdings
Limited ([ & 77 ) W BEBIFT B 24(BVI) 2 61.27 % 2
RA—BLEREIERZ]) WHE38.73% % » 2N
NEETIBRBREE ([ ETNFABRER])
ER D WBEAE o

“ERNFUBRBERZEZGHRZRAT

%178 5 —ETNFEMNA=+=H

NS R 32,770,0007% 7T

HE 200,000/ 7T 2 & &1

BR i

KR RIRAR(E 1.0187T(1.5787T)
(SCAIfER)

A K& 58#920,150,0007 7T

H¥77 A BT 481E A
WNEE - EBARSEL
12,620,000/ 7T B 817
HHAfB 2418 A A E EA

(@ R

—ETNFABRERBRZBEAEABEREH
HEMBY 2 RKMEERSRBRA/ARAZ
LB - mRAR_ZTNF+A=+
—BRth E-T——FX A=t+AAL-
REIRIE T 1T R AL H 2 B0 R B B AR
NAER X E B 3 N 31T B HIFT A H A B 317
BARESTHAZERFHL
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)
Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical (BVI) (Continued)
(o)  Redemption option

The holders of Convertible Notes 2009 shall have the
rights to redeem up to 25% of the principal amount of
the Convertible Notes 2009 outstanding at an amount
equals to the principal amount of the Convertible Notes
2009. The commencement dates of redemption fall within
the period from 31 December 2009 to 30 June 2012.
The Company is not required, at the maturity of the
Convertible Notes 2009, to redeem or pay any amount
of the Convertible Notes 2009.

The Convertible Notes 2009 contains liability component,
equity component and redemption option derivatives. The
holders’ redemption option derivative is not closely related
to the host contract as the redemption amount is not
close to the amortised cost of the liability on the
redemption date. Holders’ redemption option derivative
is measured at fair value with change in fair value
recognised in consolidated income statement.

(c) Profit guarantee

Certain members of Vendor B undertake to the Group
that the profits after tax shown in the audited consolidated
financial statements of Hunan IIN Medical, prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles for the year ending 31 December
2009 should not be less than RMB8.5 million and will
compensate the Group for any shortfall, in proportion of
their respective shareholding in [IN Medical (BVI) to the
extent of an aggregate 17.31% thereof, between the
guaranteed profit and the actual profit.

Based on the audited financial results of Hunan IIN
Medical, the profit guarantee requirement is fulfilled.

1 08 CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEEKRFFEEHRAT
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(©)
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical (BVI) (Continued)

(©)

Profit guarantee (Continued)

The directors of the Company have assessed the fair
value of the Convertible Notes 2009 with embedded
derivative. At 31 December 2011, the liability component
of the Convertible Notes 2009 is approximately
HK$9,481,000 which is stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and the fair value of the
derivative component of the Convertible Notes 2009 is
approximately HK$nil of asset (2010: HK$1,083,000 and
HK$250,000 of liability (2010: HK$1,640,000). The
effective interest expenses of Convertible Notes 2009
amounting to approximately HK$462,000 have been
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation
of the Convertible Notes 2009 are as follows:

Valuation of liability component

At the date of issue, the liability component was
recognised at fair value. The fair value of liability
component was calculated based on the present value
of the initial recognition contractually determined stream
of future cash flows discounted at the required yield,
which was determined with reference to the average yield
of notes with similar credit rating and remaining time to
maturity. In subsequent periods, the liability component
is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 11.22%.

30. TIRIRER @
AREERARQNT &)

Yo B [ 5 28

©)

BV Z100% 7 (&)
FERE (&)

AARESENFHEERARITELRE 2
TENFIRREENATE RZT——
F+ZA=+—H K ZZETNFIRRERE
2 BE D 459,481,000 7T © JHF AER
FIEEIRE SR AT - I Z T NF AR
REBZITETAET»NAFENREETS
BT (ZZE—ZF : 1,083,000 7m) K& &E
250,000 T (ZE—Z%F : 1,640,000/
TL) o ZETNFABRREBRCERANERX
#9462,0008 7T - EREBE_ZT——F+-H
=T —HIEFEZGEERERAER -

R-EZENFABRBREEERER 2T
KRBT -

BEHDAE
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical (BVI) (Continued)

(c) Profit guarantee (Continued)

30.

©

Valuation of holder redemption option derivative

Binomial model is used for valuation of holder redemption

option derivative. The inputs into the model were as

follows:

Stock price
RE
Exercise price

f16eE

Option life
BEEHR
Risk free rate
mE R X

23 April 2009
ZEENEMACZT=H

HK$0.30
0.30% 7
HK$0.32
0327

48 months
48f8 A
0.70%-1.55%
0.70%-1.55%

2011 A Convertible Notes:

31 December 2009
“EEAE+ZA=1-H

HK$0.30
0.30% T
HK$1.57 (adjusted
after the placing
of shares and
share consolidation)
1678 (RRERD
RETRHEHTNHE)
40 months
40f8 A
0.32%-1.25%
0.32%-1.25%

—F—FABREEA

R ER @)

AREERARQNT &)

MBRE (&)

W i B AR B2 ZE(BVI), 2 100% #E 2 (1)

FHFEABEREREITETAZ (5B

REBEAARLZEZETETAGBEREEHN
TIRER - BRI GAZEMT ¢

31 December 2010
“E-F5tZR=1-A

HK$0.31
031ET
HK$1.01 (adjusted
after the open offer)
101 (RRREEMRER)

28 months
28fE R
0.74%
0.74%

31 December 2011
“E--%+ZA=1-H

HK$0.237

0.287TAT

HK$1.01 (adjusted
after the open offer)

1OEL (REREER
38)

16 months
1618 A
0.29%
0.29%

On 9 May 2011, the Company issued 1% coupon convertible
notes (the “CN 2011 A”) as settlement of other loan which was
due to the former shareholder of New Beida as at 31 December
2010.

The principal terms of the CN 2011 A are as follows:

Date of issue 9 May 2011
Aggregate principal amount HK$89,999,934
Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price HK$0.50

Maturity date 36 months from the

date of issue

1 1 O CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEEKRFFEEHRAT

RZZE——FARNA  ARAETI%RL 2 F#H&
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 A Convertible Notes: (Continued)

(@)

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the whole
or any part of the outstanding principal of the Note in an
amount of not less than HK$1,000,000 on each
conversion (save that if an at time, the principal
outstanding amount of the Note is less than
HK$1,000,000, the whole (but not part only) of the
principal outstanding amount of the Notes may be
converted) into Shares in Board Lot or multiples thereof
at any time from the Issue Date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.50 per Share up to (and excluding) the
fifth Business Day immediately before the Maturity Date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company shall not be entitled to early redeem the
Notes before the Maturity Date.

Valuation of liability component

As the date of issue, the liability component was
recognised at fair value. The fair value is calculated using
cash flows discounted at a rate based on the discount
rate of 7.20%.

As at 31 December 2011, the liability component of the
CN 2011 A is approximately HK$26,105,000 which is
stated at amotised cost using the effective interest
method. The effective interest expenses of CN 2011 A
amounting to approximately HK$2,924,000 have been
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

30. TIRIRER @
AREERARQNT &)

—EFE-—FABRREEFA (B

(@)

‘AR -

ERC2HEABERERTHEBRRE (BTR
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Bfn - BRE R 2 SEA 4 H,000,0007 7T
FRIEVEMERE - ZRBEZREERSED
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 B Convertible Notes:

On 11 May 2011, the Company issued 1% coupon convertible

notes (the “CN 2011 B”), the principal terms of the CN 2011 B
are as follows:

Date of issue 11 May 2011
Aggregate principal amount HK$36,200,000
Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price HK$0.50

Maturity date 6 months from the

date of issue

On 11 November 2011, the Company and the CN Holder of CN
2011B have agreed to a 6-month postponement of the original
Maturity Date to 11 May 2012 (the “New Maturity Date”) and so
the related conversion period during which the CN Holder can
exercise the conversion right attaching to the Notes shall
accordingly expire on (but excluding) the fifth Business Day
immediately before the new Maturity Date, that is, 4 May 2012.
According to the agreement, the Company shall bear an
additional compensation of 30% of the principal amount if the
Company fails to redeem the note with one month from it maturity
date. Therefore, the Company has accrued such compensation
as at year end.

1 1 2 CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEEKRFFEEHRAT
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 B Convertible Notes: (Continued)

(@)

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the whole
or any part of the outstanding principal of the Note in an
amount of not less than HK$1,000,000 on each
conversion (save that if an at time, the principal
outstanding amount of the Note is less than
HK$1,000,000, the whole (but not part only) of the
principal outstanding amount of the Notes may be
converted) into Shares in Board Lot or multiples thereof
at any time from the Issue Date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.50 per Share up to (and excluding) the
fifth Business Day immediately before the Maturity Date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company shall not be entitled to early redeem the
Notes before the Maturity Date.

Valuation of liability component

As the date of issue, the liability component was
recognised at fair value. The fair value is calculated using
cash flows discounted at a rate based on the discount
rate of 4.48%.

As at 31 December 2011, the liability component of the
CN 2011 B is approximately HK$36,369,000 which is
stated at amotised cost using the effective interest
method. The effective interest expenses of CN 2011 B
amounting to approximately HK$785,000 have been
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2011.
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
The Group and the Company (Continued)
2011 C Convertible Notes:

On 25 August 2011, the Company issued 3% coupon convertible
notes (the “CN 2011 C”), the principal terms of the CN 2011 C
are as follows:

Date of issue 25 August 2011
Aggregate principal amount HK$19,500,000
Interest rate 3%

Adjusted conversion price HK$0.50

Maturity date 12 months from the

date of issue
(@) Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the whole
or any part of the outstanding principal of the Note in an
amount of not less than HK$1,000,000 on each
conversion (save that if an at time, the principal
outstanding amount of the Note is less than
HK$1,000,000, the whole (but not part only) of the
principal outstanding amount of the Notes may be
converted) into Shares in Board Lot or multiples thereof
at any time from the Issue Date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.50 per Share up to (and excluding) the
fifth Business Day immediately before the Maturity Date.

(b) Issuer early redemption option:

The Company shall not be entitled to early redeem the
Notes before the Maturity Date.

(c) Valuation of liability component

As the date of issue, the liability component was
recognised at fair value. The fair value is calculated using
cash flows discounted at a rate based on the discount
rate of 8.93%.

The noteholder converted all the principal of the CN 2011
C amount to HK$19,500,000 at the date of issue.

1 1 4 CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEEKRFFEEHRAT
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continueq)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 D Convertible Notes:

On 14 September 2011, the Company issued 3% coupon
convertible notes (the “CN 2011 D”), the principal terms of the
Convertible Notes 2011 D are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

14 September 2011
HK$22,500,000

Interest rate 3%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(@)

HK$0.50
12 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the whole
or any part of the outstanding principal of the Note in an
amount of not less than HK$1,000,000 on each
conversion (save that if an at time, the principal
outstanding amount of the Note is less than
HK$1,000,000, the whole (but not part only) of the
principal outstanding amount of the Notes may be
converted) into Shares in Board Lot or multiples thereof
at any time from the Issue Date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.50 per Share up to (and excluding) the
fifth Business Day immediately before the Maturity Date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company shall not be entitled to early redeem the
Notes before the Maturity Date.

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of CN 2011 D as at 14 September 2011
amounted to HK$21,908,000. The fair value is calculated
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on the
discount rate of 9.69%.

As at 31 December 2011, the liability component of the
CN 2011 D is approximately HK$20,967,000 which is
stated at amotised cost using the effective interest
method. The effective interest expenses of CN 2011 D
amounting to approximately HK$395,000 have been
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2011.
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

The movement of the liability component of the convertible

notes for the year is set out below:

Carrying amount

E/\—EE* o
N EB-F
\N—= =<

Liability

component

aEH2
HK§'000

—E-—F+ZA=+—HILFE

30. TIRIRER @)
REERARNT @)

TRERBZAERINAFEZEBRIIMT :

Equity
component
BREDS
HK$’000
TET

Financial
derivative-
asset
TEEBEE
HK$ (00[0)

Financial
derivative-
liability
TESHAE
HK$’'000
TAEL

Total
@t
HK$ OOO

at 1 January 2010 —A—BzERE 254,374 137,964 (316) 1,640 393,662
Issue of Convertible BI-ZENF

Notes 2009 (Note a) B ES GRS 2,219 4,561 - - 6,780
Conversion of Convertible EH-TTNE

Notes 2008 (Note b) AR ER (Fi5tb) (141,181) (62,758) - 175 (203,764)
Conversion of Convertible EH-_TTNFE

Notes 2009 (Note ¢) ‘Hﬁ Z5& (e - (9,159) - - (9,159
Redemption of Convertible _F */\ﬁ

Notes 2008 (Note d) ‘W Z1& (5a) (46,052) (19,860) - 56 (65,856)
Redemption of Convertible BE-ZTNE

Notes 2009 (Note e) AHRRER (ie) (3,349) (1,060) (818) (818) (5,227)
Effective interest expenses EBRFMERT 14,911 - - - 14,911
Change in fair value AFEED - - (265) 84 (181)
Carrying amount R-ZE-%F

at 31 December 2010 +-A=t-BrEEE 80,922 49,688 (1,399) 1,955 131,166
Reclassification ESiEs! 72,254 (80,012) 1,399 6,359 -
Reclassification of settled ENHECEN

CB equity component z‘HﬁﬂxTB‘:%Hx% o - (30,267) - R (30,267)
Settlement of Convertible EN= == ENE

Notes 2008 (Note f) EEESA(GE) (133,224) 64,915 - (7,891) (76,200)
Conversion of Convertible ﬁ?ﬁfgff\jlﬁ

Notes 2009 (Note g) RREE (Hig) (9,475) (2,155) 2 - (11,630)
Redemption of Convertible BO_ZZNF

Notes 2009 (Note h) AR EE (F5En) (2,547) (950) - (328) (3,825)
Issue of Convertible BT A**E

Notes 2011A BRI ES T 75,391 14,609 4 - 90,000
Conversion of Convertible EH-T——F

Notes 2011 A (Note i) ABRBREEA KD (50,261) (9,739) L - (60,000)
Issue of Convertible BA-T——F

Notes 2011B RREEB 35,584 616 = 3 36,200
Issues Convertible BABRBREE

Notes C&D CkD 39,010 2,398 S - 41,408
Conversion of Convertible ERUBRRER

Notes C&D (Note ) ClD(Fi7E) (18,438) (1,062) - - (19,500)
Effective interest expenses EEFIERY 6,815 - - - 6,815
Gain on redemption and O R TR R R R

conversion of Convertible Pl

Notes (3,109) - y - (3,109)
Change in fair value AFEED - - - 155 155
Carrying amount RZE——F

at 31 December 2011 +-A=t—-HBzEEE 92,922 8,041 - 250 101,218
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e MBGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

30. TIRIRER @
AREERARQNT &)

Notes:

(@)

On 15 July 2010, pursuant to the renewed Joint Construction
Agreement on the terms and conditions similar to the existing
Joint Construction Agreement, except that Beijing University
will be entitled to share 49% of the profits of the Distance
Education College as compared to the current level of 40%,
the Company issued Convertible Notes A5 and Convertible
Notes B3 (Convertible Notes 2010) in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$6,680,000 as the final payment for the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of IIN Medical (BVI).

The principal terms of the Convertible Notes 2010 are as follows:

Date of issue 15 July 2010
Aggregate principal amount  HK$6,780,000
Denomination in multiple of HK$200,000
Interest rate Nil

Adjusted conversion price HK$1.01

(previously reported)
Maturity dates Principal amount approximately
HK$6,780,000 matured in 24
months from the date of

issue and the remaining

Set out below are details of conversion of the Convertible Notes
2008 during the year 2010:

BrAH

Date of conversion

09 March 2010
26 April 2010

—E-ZEF=ANH
—E-ZFNA=+<H

fia -

R-Z—ZTELA+RB - REBRELUNES L2
i Z R K& GRIERAB B BESHERR
BBt 249%mF. 25N » B Al ZKFE R40%) &
B2 Kz - AR RTS8 % 56,680,000
BT Z AR EEBEAS K TR EEBI (i A=
S-ZFEIBRKRER]) - EAKBREMEREBV)E
HEBETRAN LMK -

—E-EFEABRERBEZ T EZEROT

FITEHH —ZE-ZF+A+HA

PNE AR L 6,780,000/ 7T

[ 200,000/ 7T 2 5 &

B i

RRBRRE 1.018 7T

(SCRIFESR)

ZIH A N4 FE#6,780,00078 7T B 3
17T B HIRE AT 2418 B M EIH7
C HER

MNoZT—TF  —TT)\EABMRER SRS
El BN

Principal Number of

amount of the Ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
AHRREEzEAEHE ERTEERYE
(adjusted due

to share

HK$ consolidation)

B (AR esmaR)

150,000,000
8,000,000

163,061,224
8,163,265
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

30. T[RRERE &

NF AR RIE 2 BIATHE

Number of
Ordinary

shares issued
ERTEBERHYE
(adjusted due

to share
consolidation)

(B & vt maE)

2,388,535
4,219,850
2,211,292

176,633

RoB—FF - BT A RRTRZ B R

The Group and the Company (Continued) AEBRARQNT #)
Notes: (Continued) izt - (48)

(c) Set out below are details of conversion of the Convertible Notes (©) RZE—TF  ZTFT
2009 during the year 2010: BImT

Principal

amount of the

convertible notes

Date of conversion g A ARBREEEASHE

HK$

BTT

18 January 2010 —ZT-TF—HA+/\H 3,750,000

30 September 2010 —ZT-TFhA=+H 4,262,060

1 November 2010 —F-ZTF+—H—H 2,233,419

6 December 2010 —ZET—ZTF+=AXH 178,400

(d) Set out below are details of Redemption of the Convertible Notes (d) i S —=FFE
2008 during the year 2010: BImT

Principal

amount of the

convertible notes

Date of conversion i g AEREBZREE

HK$

BIT

10 June 2010 —ZE-TFXATH 50,000,000

(e) Set out below are details of Redemption of the Convertible Notes (e) RZE—TF  ZFF
2009 during the year 2010: #HHmT

Principal

amount of the

convertible notes

Date of redemption e A ARREBZAESE

HK$

BT

18 January 2010 —FT-ZF—A+/\H 1,250,000

16 July 2010 —E-ZF+A+H 331,344

31 October 2010 —E-EF+A=+—H 1,244,934

31 October 2010 —E-EF+A=+—H 679,627

1 1 8 CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEEKRFFEEHRAT

Number of
Ordinary

shares issued
ERITEEREE
(adjusted due

to share
consolidation)

(B R 1n & Bf i 38 2)

NilZ

NETHARR R 2 BOIFHE

Number of
Ordinary

shares issued
ERTEBERHE
(adjusted due

to share
consolidation)

(B & O w8 %)

NilZ
NilZ=
NilZ
NilZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continueq) 30. TJIRIRERE »
The Group and the Company (Continued) AEBERAQT @)
Notes: (Continued) izt : (8)
) All the outstanding of Convertible Notes 2008 has been fully () FAERERZ ST\ FiBREBER_T—
settled by issue of CN 2011 A during year 2011. FEBRBT_T——FABRREBABEHEN -
() Set out below are details of Conversion of the Convertible Notes @) RZTE——F  ZTTNFBRERZ BIRFS
2009 during the year 2011: gy
Principal Number of
amount of the Ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
Date of conversion Eia H A AEREBEZAEEHE ERTEBREAE
(adjusted due
to share
HK$ consolidation)

BT (B & Gt maAR)

14 January 2011 —E——F—-A+HA 3,750,000 3,712,871

18 January 2011 —E——F—A+N\H 3,154,106 3,122,877

18 April 2011 —T——FWmA+NH 4,726,441 4,679,633

(h) Set out below are details of Redemption of the Convertible Notes (h) RZT——F  —TTNFRREREZ BEFS

2009 during the year 2011: BHylmT

Principal Number of

amount of the Ordinary

convertible notes shares issued

Date of redemption e H A AEREBEZAEE ERTEBERER

(adjusted due

to share

HK$ consolidation)

BT (E R & prm )

14 January 2011 —E——F%—A+tWlA 1,250,000 NilZ
18 January 2011 —E——F%—At)N\H 1,000,000 NilZ
18 April 2011 —E=——&mA+NR 1,575,479 NilZ

—F——f 4 - ANNUAL REPORT 2011 1 1 9
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
The Group and the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) Set out below are details of Conversion of the CN 2011 A during (i)
the year 2011:

i A

Date of conversion

—E——F+A=-+TANA
—E——FN\A=1+=H

29 July 2011
23 August 2011

0] Set out below are details of Conversion of the CN 2011 C and ()
CN 2011 D during the year 2011:

i A

Date of conversion

25 August 2011 —E——F N \A=+HHAH

fi i

30. TIRIRER @)
AREERARQNT &)

(#&)

R-E——F 22— —FrRRERAZEIRF

BENAT -

Principal
amount of the
convertible notes

TRRESE 2 F SR

HKS$

B

30,000,000

30,000,000
RoE——%

Number of
Ordinary

shares issued
ERITEBRHEE
(adjusted due

to share
consolidation)

(B & ot maa%)

60,000,000
60,000,000

R —FUHRERECK T —

—EAMRRED 2 B EHIIWT

Principal

amount of the
convertible notes
AHRREE A&

HK$
BT

19,600,000

Number of
Ordinary

shares issued
ERTEERYE
(adjusted due

to share
consolidation)

(B & ofmE %)

39,000,000

REE-T——GR-T-TF+-A=+—Hit
FREEF AR AR R ) B B
BAiE 2 B A B A EE TR BT HARA AT
fifE -

The Group’s convertible notes were valued by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified valuer not connected
with the Group, for each of the years ended 31 December 2011
and 2010.
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31. OPERATING LEASE 31. EEHLKRIE
COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had commitments RpEBHTER  NEERPAEWENRAME
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable EZ T HEH S E ML AR 2 RRSERERIAD
operating leases in respect of office premises and other asset, HERNT ¢

which fall due as follows:

The Group
EE

2011 2010
—E2——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Within one year —FR 1,829 1,729
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EERF (BREERRT) 984 1,496
Over five years AFUE - -
2,813 3,225

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms of 1 to 5 MODE-—Z2NF2FRERERER(CE—F4F
years (2010: 1 to 5 years) —ERF) o

32. OTHER COMMITMENT 32. Hibxig

The Group
FEE
2011 2010

—g—-5& —2-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiB FET

Expenditure contracted for but not provide inthe Bt N7 IE D 5T LEARR

consolidated financial statement in respect of: IMAETRREREE AT
— Online system development — R RGRE - 6,426
— Exclusive agency —BHRAIE = 4,296

- 10,722

T —— 5§ - ANNUAL REPORT 2011 1 21



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ T ——F+_A=+—HIEFE

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities at the end of
the reporting period (2010: Nil).

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group’s assets
(2010:Nil) were pledged to secure the Group’s banking facilities.

35. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 24
November 2001, pursuant to which, the Board might during the
period commencing on the adoption date of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and ending on the day immediately prior to the
day when bulk printing of the prospectus for listing of shares of
the Company took place grant options to any employee of the
Group or any other persons who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, have contributed or would contributed to the Group to
subscribe for shares of the Company at HK$0.12 per share,
representing a discount of approximately 64% of the placing
price when the shares of the Company were first listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange on 5 December 2001. The exercise price
was subsequently adjusted to HK$0.9796 per share after
adjustment for the open offer of the Company effected during
the year and the share consolidation effected in the year 20086.

On 27 November 2001, options to subscribe for a total of
44,000,000 shares of the Company were granted to a director
and an employee at a total consideration of HK$2. The options
granted may be exercised at any time during the period from 5
December 2001 to 4 December 2011. No options were granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after the listing of the
shares of the Company. The option for subscribing 40,000,000
shares of the Company was lapsed and an option to subscribe
for 490,000 shares (after adjustment for the open offer of the
Company effected during the year and the share consolidation
effected in the year 2006) was outstanding as at 31 December
2010. No options granted under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
were exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.

1 22 CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEEKRFFEEHRAT

33. HAER

R|EHR  AEEREEEERNRRAE
—TFFE) -

EEHRA

RBEHR - AEEREEE(CT—FTF:
B)EEARESAKERITEE 2ER -

35. LUIR3Zf41E & M

34.

NSRS

ARBMN-ZFE—F+-A-tHARALHEE
AIEERCERT & Bt - EF G AN ERMAFHEESA
BREGTSEREEERAQNAMRN EH 2

BRERMNEN— B 2HER - IAKEEARE
FEZS2RNERAELIFEHAREIELT

R EfRIE M A TR L AU - (e MiRFAR0.12/8
T BARFROR_BEZE—F+ A1 A8 REH
RFFEIZER -8 2 Bl & BITEA164%) REAR R A
I - ITEREREEARANFERNETRREER
RZZBZRFEETRNDAEHMARZZEX0.9796
BT e

RN_EBEE—F+—A-_+tH —RZEE=N—%E
EERKR T A AR 44,000,000 & A a) i 2 B

figtE - Mﬂ;z%z/%m FIHc BREATR_EZ
—F+-_ARAHE-_T——F+=-ANABILHHRA
BERFITIE « RARRIIRMGD L& - BIERBE QM
ERERETERLERE R -5+ A
=+—H - AR 40,000,0000 AR A B 5 2 B
B R BB A REEA90,0008 % (0 (AN A A
RERNEBTRAABERR ST NFEETRNE
M) 2BRENRETE - TR BEREA
FE SR IERER SR H 2 BAREEITE - EiEsk
KK o

C
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35. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme on 24 November
2001 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
selected persons for their contribution to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for 10 years with
expiry date of 5 December 2011. Pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme, the Board may grant options to any employee of the
Group or any other persons who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, have contributed or will contribute to the Group to
subscribe for shares of the Company at a price determined by
the Board and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the option which
must be a business day, (i) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the date of offer of the options.

The total number of securities which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed
47,774,389 shares (equivalent to 238,871,947 shares before
adjustment for the share consolidation of the Company effective
17 December 2009). The maximum entitlement of each
participant under the Share Option Scheme in any 12-month
period is 1 per cent of the shares in issue.

The grantees may accept the offer of options by paying HK$1
as the consideration of the grant to the Company within 28 days
from the date of offer. Any offer which is not accepted within
such period will be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.
The options may be exercised at any time during a period of 10
years from the date of grant of the options and there is no lock-
up period for exercise of the options.

35. LIIRZTESEHEM =

B IR HERT &

RZZFZT—F+—A-+WME » ARmRK—HE
iEst el EERAARBEIFHERMZEEE AL
Pe ek B2 - AR S 2 B MR AEMFH R
TFE WHR_T——F+_ARBER - RIEE
BHEAE  EFgARARETANERSKESTS S
REBERREEAHEHAREEELTRM ZERNE
fﬂz}\i&ﬁTaﬂ%$@‘7ﬁﬁ1ﬁ25§ﬁ§% BRAE
EEER]  ETEER TSR Z& R
iEE A (BWARREER) B PO ?&FfrEl#I?z%ziFfr
HWHE  (1BEREBREZAMAESZXRA
P OB 32 P B ¥R _E PR < P9 T (B ¢+ R R
HEEAE E B iRy < EE -

I@T)ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁéﬁiﬂ&EﬁﬁM?ri‘J?ﬁﬁZi\%ﬁﬁﬁﬂi
RETEMAERTZESFBE - 115 fiﬁé#
47,774,389k fh (FEERBRART B ZEZTNF+
“AttHAERZBOEHMHELAERMNZ
238,871,947 & fn) - MAEMRT @A BHERK - &
ZLHERZAIREERETEERTHAGESR
TTREAD 1 % 2 B R HE -

AFRAARREEREZZZE BE28AARAAN
RAIVB T2 BB BARRBIE - AR Lt
HAME) A A 2 IR R R R VE I N R 4B AR - 8
MR AR H RS IR 2 B AT T @10 2 i R
1T - ITE BRI B EMHEN RS -
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35. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 35. LR TEEEHM =

COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued) BERESTE @

The movements in the share options of the Company during TR ARRBREZEFSHNTE

the year are shown in the following table:

At At

Exercise 31 December 31 December
Name of Date of Exercise period price per 2010 Movement 2011
participant grant and vesting period share RZZE—Z%F during the year R-B-——%F
BHEERE REAH TREREES ’éﬁﬁﬁﬁ% +=ZB=+-H FA%E® +-A=1+-8H

HK
(&7

Directors
=
Chen Hong 28/08/2008 28/08/2008-27/08/2018 1.281 1,900,000 - 1,900,000
EYN 09/07/2009 09/07/2009-08/07/2019 0.652 1,900,000 - 1,900,000
Liang Juan* 28/08/2008 28/08/2008- 27/08/2018 1.281 400,000 - 400,000
REE 09/07/2009 09/07/2009- 08/07/2019 0.652 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
Wang Hui** 28/08/2008 28/08/2008- 27/08/2018 1.281 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
IE~ 09/07/2009 09/07/2009-08/07/2019 0.652 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Wei Jianya 28/08/2008 28/08/2008- 27/08/2018 1.281 800,000 - 800,000
ZRG 09/07/2009 09/07/2009- 08/07/2019 0.652 600,000 - 600,000
Li Xiangjun** 28/08/2008 28/08/2008- 27/08/2018 1.281 1,400,000 - 1,400,000
Sy 09/07/2009 09/07/2009- 08/07/2019 0.652 2,600,000 - 2,600,000
Subtotal 15,800,000 - 15,800,000
INat
Others
Hitr
In aggregate ** 28/08/2008 28/08/2008- 27/08/2018 1.281 13,100,000 (13,100,000) -
CE 09/07/2009 09/07/2009- 08/07/2019 0.652 18,500,000 (18,500,000) -
Total#@ &t 47,400,000 (31,600,000) 15,800,000
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment . T T HEAR Sk B A TAL AR S AR 2 BIAR AN (3R Ho A KB (A

in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital. Following the share consolidation
effective on 17 December 2009, the total number of share
options outstanding and the exercise price of the share options
outstanding and the closing price of shares immediately before
the date of grant had been adjusted accordingly. The closing
price of the shares at the date of grant of the share options was
HK$1.065 (adjusted after the share consolidation).

*x

o Resigned during respective years.

e The Group of Others ceased to be employees of the Company.
e The exercise price of the share option is subject to adjustment e
in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in

the Company’s share capital. Following the Open Offer on 31

May 2010, the exercise prices of the share options outstanding

and the closing prices of shares immediately before the date of

grant had been adjusted accordingly.
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HE) - MBEENITTEERATAAE - BRN A6
RIZBZENF+ A+ ERBRERER - ZEREA
HAR0 2 1M R BB AR 2 40 B % i R T R A 2
1T E R A B SRR E R - AR D
H B2 Bt Ui (8 41.06578 7T (AR 19 & 12 45 38
) -

RIEEFEERHE
HM@nZ AT BRAARIES -

T T HAR S B FTAL AR S AN A R IR AR (38 EL A 4R
25 - ABRENTEEATARAR -R_2T—-F
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35. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continueq)

35. LIIRZTESEHEM =

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

No share option was granted or exercised during the year 2011.

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the number

of share options granted was nil (2010: nil). The fair value

of options granted under the Share Option Scheme,
amounted to nil (2010: nil). The fair values of the
outstanding options were derived from Black-Scholes

option pricing model by applying the following bases and

assumptions:

Expected
Date of grant (dd-mm-yy) volatility
REBH (B B~ F) T8 HR IR
09.07.2009 86.70%
28.08.2008 79.60%

The Group recognised the total expenses of
approximately HK$O0 (2010: HK$0) in relation to share
options granted by the Company.

(0

(i

(ii)

the expected volatilities were generated from
Bloomberg based on the Company’s 1,250-day
historical share prices before 9 July 2009 (year
2008: 999-day historical share prices before 28
August 2008);

the applicable risk-free rates were the yields of
five years Hong Kong Monetary Authority
exchange fund notes, matching the assumed life
of the options, quoted on 9 July 2009 (year 2008:
28 August 2008); and

the expected dividend yields were estimated
based on the historical dividend, which was zero.

B ERTE @

A —
N
Ji—

(@)

T——%F  UEBRERLNKITE-

E—T——F+-_HA=+—-BIFE B
RO BEEER /TN (CE—FF : T
) - REBERET RO 2 BEREZ 2T E
RE(CE—Z2F : T) - WATTEBREZ
Qi@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ@%%%i%&ﬁ
BIATEERRRE

Expected life Risk-free Expected
(in years) interest rate dividend yield
FHFH () 9 [ B Il = FEERER
10 1.78% Nil4&

10 2.76% Nil4&

AREBRARBE L 2 BIRAERERF AR

MNEBT(ZT—FF : TET) °

() AR BN Z BES - IIRBEARAQF
RZZEZNFEANBRIZ1,2508 &
SRECZEENF  ZEZN\FENA
ZHN\BRZ999HFEELIRE) BEE

(ii) L%ﬂﬂ MR BEBEREEBRIN
E2EBER_TTAFLANB(C
iiﬂi —EENENAZTN
B A= - Sk iR
FHIRMBES + &

BHIR SR TNRELRE R (BT)H

o

(ii)

i ?‘-ﬁ
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35. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (cContinued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(b) The values of the options are subject to the limitations of
the Black-Scholes option pricing model and a number of
assumptions which are subjective and difficult to
ascertain. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

(c) No share option was exercised during the year 2011 and
2010.

(d) The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2011
had a remaining contractual life of 7.09 years (31
December 2010: 8.09 years).

(e) If options are forfeited before expiration or lapsed, the
related share-based payment reserve will be transferred
directly to accumulated losses.

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amount due from minority shareholder of a
subsidiary, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
amounts due to directors, financial derivative, convertible notes
and other loan. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.
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35.

LI Z fHESE#FHEM =)

BIRERTE (@

(b)

36.

Wik 2 EEAR T R — BT
B2 AR S 4 A B 2 B
B - BHIRAZ TBHALBBR
% AAFEEHAGEIEALE -

BEBRER - —FR-FT-FTFFA
BETE -

NR-BE——F+-_A=+—H  KTFER
7 FANERART.09F (ZE—FF+=
A=+—8 : 8.094) o

10 B8 S A A BT VE RE Bk Sk B AR RE LARR 32
NREESEEERAZTERE -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continueq)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 31 December
2011 in relation to each class of recognized financial assets is
the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables and other receivables. In order
to minimise credit risk, management has certain monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivables regularly at each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
adequately made for irrecoverable amounts. The credit risk on
liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are commercial
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group’s
bank deposits. All the borrowings and deposits are on a floating
rate basis.

The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge against
the interest rate risk. However, the interest rate profile of the
Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits and amount due from
a related company less interest-bearing financial liabilities) is
closely monitored by management.

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points (2010: 50 basis points) in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s (loss) before tax and accumulated losses
by approximately HK$93,343 (2010: HK$146,130).
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continueq)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the reporting
date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for the non-derivative financial liabilities in existence at that date.
The 50 basis points increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2011.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi (“RMB”), for the years 2011 and 2010. Such
exposures arise from online professional training and multimedia
education products in currencies other than the Group’s
functional currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar). All of the Group’s
sales are denominated in RMB for the years 2011 and 2010.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group conducts its business transactions principally in RMB.
The exchange rate risk of the Group is not significant.

Liquidity risk

For the management of the Group’s liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash and cash
equivalents considered adequate by management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash
flows. Management reviews and monitors its working capital
requirements regularly.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the contractual maturities at the end
of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates) and the

36. REMEERERBER @

AEBELSERE &

TRHAVAEBN HERRNERABEOINHIB
N ERMEEREBECATORTARERE (BRIAR]

RIP RETE 2 F S FR0R) BARE B 2 /A S N R 2 &
R EHEE

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

More than one More than two Total
year but less years but less undiscounted
Ondemandor  thantwoyears  than five years cash flow Carrying
within one year —FN0E [E S KBRS amount
EERS—FR EmEAR BEELNR RELR REE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
THER THER THER TR TExL
At 31 December 2011 RZB——F+1C
A=+-H
Financial liabilities TRAR
Trade and other payables BHREMERRR 45,330 - - 45,330 45,330
Convertible notes RRER 66,817 26,105 - 92,922 92,922
Capital risk management ERE R EE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Company will REE %EE%ZX HRARRRENIFELE  [F
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the Sl quzbdﬁfféﬁi%ﬁ? ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ mAREE
return to stakeholders through optimisation of the debt and FEE = BIER o
equity balance.
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash Zli'E B ERAREREREMREESEBEBURR

NEFAANELEDS (BEEEITRARFEE) - A
RRAEETHRNERNEE - tEAZRT M — I
n’$Aﬂ%$@%f§%ﬁ$&ﬁ%ﬂ&’ e
KEEEZRERABRERRG C ERERE - 5=
—FR_F-—ZEFF+_A=+-— Elﬂ:ﬁmlifAz
F o RRRBERERIFZIE -

equivalents and equity attributable to the owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. The
directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As a part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the associated risks and take
appropriate actions to adjust the Company’s capital structure.
The overall strategy of the Company remained unchanged during
each of the two years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Corporation agreement in relation to the development,
technical maintenance and operation of the it Rit E&F 4

BR % 48

On 26 April 2011, in relation to a letter of intent (“Letter of Intent”)
was signed between Beijing Hua Tuo Education Technology
Company Limited (“Hua Tuo”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and it Rz @EEHR B R 2 A (Beijing Lulutong
Technology Company Limited *) (“Lulutong”) for the development
of the “Medical Access Card Integrated Operation and Service
Platform V1.0”. Lulutong is a company mainly engaged in the
issuance and operation of prepayment cards and relevant
comprehensive services and businesses in the medical health
sector in China.

On 1 December 2011, Lulutong signed a 1t 5 4t [& &5 A AR 75 48
A 1E# = (Beijing Community Health Services website
cooperation agreement (“Cooperation Agreement”) with 1t =
HEEEREEES L (Beijing Community Health Services
Management Centre*) (“BJCHS”). BJCHS is directly under the
I RmTE LS (Beijing Municipal Health Bureau*) and is
exclusively responsible for all related work in the management
of the health services for the Beijing community. Based on the
information provided by Lulutong, there are currently 351
community health services centers and over 2,000 community
health services station sunder planning and development in
Beijing, and BJCHS is establishing health records for 19.6 million
permanent residents in Beijing.

Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, Lulutong agrees to
provide the services of development, technical maintenance and
operation of the 1t R4t & & 4 R 749 (Beijing Community Health
Services website*) for BJCHS. Lulutong should follow the 3
RAE R R E LRGBS 1EHTE) (Cooperation Plan related to
Beijing Community Health Services website*) for the strict
technical management, steady operation and security measures
of the Beijing Community Health Services website. Lulutong shall
also be responsible for the provisions and costs of (i) the
hardware for technical operation and maintenance; and (i)
software development.
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

BJCHS will apply for relevant maintenance fees of operation
from Beijing Municipal Bureau of Finance in accordance with
the workload of Lulutong, and such fees shall be paid to Lulutong
annually. As regards to the other characteristic medical services
carried out by Lulutong, BJCHS agrees to provide policy
guidance and business support for Lulutong and to execute
further specific agreements regarding the aforesaid matters,
subject to relevant policies and provided it is within its terms of
reference.

Since the 1t Rt R E £ REA (Beijing Community Health
Services website*) will be based on the Medical Access Card
Integrated Operation and Service Platform developed by Hua
Tuo, pursuant to the Letter of Intent, Hua Tuo and Lulutong will
share the revenue generated from the implementation of the
project and subsequent services. Details of the revenue sharing
ratio shall be further negotiated between Hua Tuo and Lulutong.

Acquisition of Target Company

On 10 February 2012 (after trading hours), the Company has
entered into (i) an agreement with Ms. Hong (as the vendor) for
the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Everjoy
Technology (i.e. the ET Agreement) at a consideration of
HK$21,000,000, which is to be satisfied as to HK$8,000,000 in
cash, HK$7,000,000 by the issue of the Non-Profit-Linked
Everjoy Technology Convertible Note (“Non-Profit-Linked ETCN”)
and HK$6,000,000 by the issue of the Profit-Linked Everjoy
Technology Convertible Note (“Profit-Linked ETCN”); and (ii) an
agreement with Mr. Lee (as the vendor) for the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Everjoy International (i.e. the El
Agreement) at a consideration of HK$75,600,000, which is to
be satisfied as to HK$22,600,000 in cash or by way of issue of
the Non-Profit-Linked EICN, HK$29,000,000 by the issue of the
Non-Profit-Linked Everjoy International Convertible Note (“Non-
Profit-Linked EICN”) and HK$24,000,000 by the issue of the
Profit-Linked Everjoy International Convertible Note (“Profit-
Linked EICN”), respectively.
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

Acquisition of Target Company (Continued)

Everjoy Technology is a company incorporated with limited
liability in the British Virgin Islands, which maintains long term
business relationship with an independent third party. The Everjoy
Technology and the independent third party have jointly
developed the system of “B4REREABEHKHE T EV2.07
(Online network automatic ticket sales platform v2.0) (the
“Platform”). The Platform is a centralized online ticket sales
system which operates on windows operating system and allows
multi-users to purchase tickets simultaneously. It is widely used
in mainland China for the sale and distribution of tickets for
shows, concerts, sports games and cultural performances. The
principal businesses of the Everjoy Technology are the
development, integration and application of computer network
systems.

Everjoy International is an agent for the sub distribution of tickets
sold under the Platform. Everjoy Technology, Everjoy International
and the independent third party have entered into franchise
arrangement for the sale and distribution of tickets sold under
the Platform.

38. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to confirm
to the current year’s presentation.
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